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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Te,

The Members,

ALs B R D Motors Limited
CIN:US0101KL1999PLCO1 2564

T K M Complex,
Kokkalai, Thrissur, Kerala, 630021, India

The Board of Duectors of B R D Motors Limuted has pleasure 1n presentng the 26th Anmual

Report on the busmess and operations of the Company and the accounts for the financial vear
endad March 31, 2025

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

The keyv financial highlights of the Company based on the Standalone and Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year under review are as follows:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended |
A1.032025 31032024

Revenue from Operations = ]
T 4167254 3154600
| Total Revenue 67254 354600
Total Experess 64547980 5715700
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary (5.97.80,726) | (25,61,190)
items and tax :
Exceptional stems - -
Profit / (Loss) Profit before tax (59780716 (25,61,100)
Tax Expense - .
Current Tax = =
Deferred Tax 252,16402 | =
Profit / (Loss) after Tax (3.05,64326)  (25,61,190)

The Company achieved a total revenne of Bs. 47,67.254/- for the vear ended 31% March 2025 as
against a total revemme of Rs. 31,54,600/- for the vear ended 31% March. 2024. Your Company
reported a Net loss of Rs. 305,64 328~ after tax for the year ended 317 March 2025, as agamnsia
Net loss of Re 25,61,190- for the year ended 317 March, 2024 The huge loss is reported as a
result of wiite off the value of investment

Your directors are optimustic about company s business and hopeful of better performance with

increased revenue 1o next year.




COMPANY OVERVIEW

B R D Motors Limited 15 a Poblic Limited Company mc:n:crpuatedmﬂﬂ’!r![m:h 1999 with main
objects of purchase sell and deal in all types of motor vehicles meluding by way agency,
dealership and distribution and 15 accessones The demand for used velicles 15 expected 10
expand 1n comung time as customers searching for custormzed mobility m a safer condition
would request so. Show room modifications for the operations of proposed busmess 1s gomg on
and lookme forward for a ugh prowth m fsure tme.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFOEMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES:

The Company has two Associate Companies as on 317 March, 2025 viz, (A) B R D Car World
Limsted; and (B) B R D Developers and Builders Limited

The Statement contammng the sahent features of the financial statements of Subsidianes
Aszociate Companies or Jomt Ventures pursuant to Section 129 of the Compames Act, 2013 read
with Ruole 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 m Form No AOC-1 15 appended to thus
Annual Report

As requared under Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated financial
statement of the Company and B R D Car World Limited and B R D Developers and Builders
Lamsted, its Associate Compames. 15 also appended to this Annual Report for placing the same
before the Annual General Meeting

SHARE CAPITAL:

There was no change m the Share Capital of the Company durmg the vear under review. The
Authorized Share Capital of the Company as of 317 March 2025 stood at Rs 30,00,00,000-
divided mto 3,00,00,000 Equty Shares of Rs 10/~ each.

The 1ssued, subscnibed and paid-up share capstal of the Company as of 31 March, 2023 stood at
Rs 24 39 08 490/- divided 1nto 2 43,90 849 Equity Shares of Ra 10/- each.

AMOUNTS, IF ANY, TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES:

The deficit in Profit & Loss Account camed forward to Balance Sheet of the Company as on 31%
March 2025 and after all adjustments amountz to Rs.(3.05.64.324) -

DIVIDEND:
The Company had not declared any divided for the vear under review

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TOINVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

The provisions of Section 125 (2) of the Companses Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company as
there was no dridend declared and paid dunng the year under review.




COMPOSITON OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EMP AND CHANGES THERETN:

There was no change m the consttubion of the Board of Directors duning the year under review,
The name, designation, date of appomtment and the mumber of Beard mectings attended by each
of them n the FY 2023-24 are grven below:

| 81 - Date of MNo.of Board

| No I*»amr.: o Dexigmmn | Appomtment | Meetings attended
| e — _ | App 1 L
1| Chungath ‘”"”mmﬂ_ﬂ "“1_5’““ Drector 09.03.1999 5

(2 | MChungath Chors | yposping Director | 23032006 5

| N Kollannoor | | :
B N T

|4 |MrMathewlose | Independent Durector | 11032019 5

| 5 | MrSunoy Mathew | Independent Dwector | 11032019 | 5

During the vear under review, Mr. Nidheesh O P was relieved from the office of chuef financial
officer and Key Managenal personnel (KMP) with effect from 31.03.2025.0n 25th June, 2025,
My Jeevan Joy was appointed as Accounts Manager also acting chief financial officer and Key
Managenal personnel (KMP) of the Company. Mr. Bhageerathan G, was appomted as Company
Secretary and Key Managenal personal (KMP) on 31 08.2074

DETAILS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Company appointed M's. Balan & Co,, Chartered Accountants, Bank Road, Aluva,
683101 KL, ICAI Firm registration number: 0003405 at the 26™ Annual General Meeting as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a peniod of 5 (Frve) consecutive financial
vearz, from the conclusion of the 26™ Annual General Meeting of the Company eatil the
concluzion of the 31° Annual General Mesting of the Company.




ANNUAL RETURN:

The copy of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the Compamies Act, 2013 and rule
12(1) of the Compamies (Management and Admmistration) Rules, 2014, n Form MGT-7 s
made avalable on the website of the Company at www.brdgroup.net

ANUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR:

Duning the vear under review, Four(4) mestngs of the Board of Directors of the company were
held The Board meetings were held on the following dates:

| 51

No Date of Meeting Board Strength | Noof Duectors Present
! 28.06.2024 ] &
2 31082024 ] 3
3 05.12.2024 & 5
4 06.02.2025 [ 5
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on date, the Board of Darectors has the followang Commuttees under provisions of the
Compames Act 2013:

1. Apdit Commities
2. Nomunation and Remuneranion Commaties
3. Stakeholders™ Relationship Commmuttes

The detatls of the Commutiees along with thewr compomtion. mumber of meetings held and
attendance at meetings are detailed below

Audit Commities

Andrt Commuttee of the Board of Directors (“the Audnt Committee™) 13 entrusted prmanty with
the responsibility to supervise the Company’s mternal controls and financial reporting process,
The members of the Audit Commuttee are financially literate and bnng i expertise m the fields
of Frnance, Taxation and Auditing. The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope of the
Commuttee shall be 1 accordance with Section 177 of the Compamies Act and rules framed
thereunder. Dunng the year under review, 1 meeting of the Andit Commuttee was held on
31082024 Commuttee members and ther aftendsnce detmls 23 follows:




Wame of the members No. of meetings attended
Mr. William Varghese Chunzath y

| Chem |
Mr Sunmy Mathew | '
Mr. Baholeyan Raman Naluporakical | 1
Mr. Mathew Jose 1 |

During the year there were no cases of non-acceptance of recommendations of the Audit
Commuttes by the Board of Directors.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The commmitee mamly deals with maters relating to the size and compositton of the Board,
succession plans, evaluation of performance, Board diversity and remuneration framework and
pohicies thereon. The committee 15 m the process of improving detalled cnitena relating to the
determmation of qualificatons, posttive atmbutes and independence of directors and
recommendation of candidates to the Board as well as a policy relatmo to remuneration of
directors, key managenal personnel and other employees. During the vear under review,
Committee mesting held on 28% Jun, 2024 and 31% August, 2024, Committes members and their
attendance details as follows

Name of Member No. of meetings attended
Mr. William Varghese Chungath Cheru
Mr. Samug KC

| Mr. Simon Chers C
Mr. Sunmy Mathew
M NR Bahmleyan
Mr. Mathew Joss

[ ]

[

I-a

b |

ra

The commuittes looks mio the matters of Sharsholders | Investors grievances relating to transfer
of shares, 1ssue of duphcate shares, split certificates and related matters. Dunng the vear under
review, meehings of the Stakeholder Relationship Commuttoe held on 28% Jun, 2024 Commuttee
members and their attendance detals as follows.

Name of Member No. of mestings attended _
Mr. William Varghese Chungath Chero | !
Mr. Simon Chera C | 1 ‘




DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of the requirements of Section 134 (3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors hereby state and confirm thar -

{2} in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been
followed and there are no matenal departures;

(b) they had selected such accounting policies and appled them consstently and made
yadgements and estimates that are reasonable and prodent so as to give a troe and fan view
of the State of Affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the Company for that period:

(c) proper and sufficient care were taken for the mamtenance of adequate accounting records
accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act, 2013 for safeguardmg the assets of
vour Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other wregulantes;

(d) the Annnal Accounts were prepared on a gomg concern basis;

(e} the Company being unlisted, sub clause (¢) of Sechon 134 {3) of the Compames Act, 2013
pertaming to laying down imternal financial controls to be followed 15 not applicable to the
Company; and

(f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all appheable laws were devised
and such systems were adequate and operating effectrvely.




DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (11) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTAELE
TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

A frauds have been reported by the Statutory Auditors under Sub-section (12} of the Section 143 of
the Compames Act, 2013 and hence, reporting under clause (ca) of Section 134 (3) 15 applicable to
the Company for the yvear under review. Based on exanunation of the books and records of the
Company and according to the mformation and explanations given to auditor, considenng the
principles of mateniality outhned in Standards on Auditing. Auditors reporied a fraud by the Company
employee or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audn. During the
course of the audit for the financial vear ending 315t march 2025, 3 case of financial wregulanty was
wentifted 1volving musappropniation of funds by an emplovee 1n the company. The estimated
financial impact of the fraud 1s Rs. 43 35 503/~

Management has initiated disciplmary action agamst the mdividual involved and an FIR was
filed on 19/06 2025 at Pudukkadu, under FIR. No. 0834, mvoking Sections 318(4),316(4).
The matter 15 currently under investization by the local law enforcement authorrties. As per the
FIR the amount reported 13 70,83 999 as on 23/04,2025_

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Tndependent Daurectors play an important role mn thewr governance process of the Board They
bring to bear thewr expertise and expenience on the deliberations of the Board. This ennches the
decision maling process at the Board with different pomnt of view and expenences and prevents
conflict of mierest m the decision-making process. The appomtment of Independent Director 13
carried out 1 a3 structured manner The Nomination and Femuneration Committes identifies
potential candidates based on certan lad dovwn erriena and takes in 1o consideration the diveraity
of the Board. The Independent Directors have been appomnted for 2 fixed tenure of five yeans
from their respective dates of appointment Dunng the vear under review, the Independent
Directors met on 01% Juby, 2025 mteralia to discuss:
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3) Evaluation of the Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of
Drrectors as a whole:

b} Evaluaticen of the Performance of the Chasrman of the Company, taking mio account
the views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

¢) Ewvaluation of the qualty, content and umehines of flow of mformation between the
Management and the Board that 15 necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform its duties. All the Independent Directors were present throughout
the Meeting. They expressed views on the business transacted at the Mestings and the
openness with which the Management discussed vanous subject matiers on the agenda
of the mectings. Thewr suggestions were discussed at the Board Mecting and are being
mmplemented to ensure 2 more robust interaction at the Board level

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All Independent Darectors have given declarations that they meet the cntena of independence as
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Compames Act, 2013 for fulfillment of thew
tesponsibalities m 2 professional and fasthful manner and fo promote confidence of the
mvestment commumnity, particularly Minonty Shareholders and regulators of the Company

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE
AND THE DATE OF THE EEPORT:

There were no matenial chanpes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of the financial vear 1o which the financial statements relate and the
date of this report and hence reporting under clause (1) of Secticn 134 (3) 15 not applicable to the
Company

COMPANY'S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS:

The current policy 15 to have an appropriate mux of executive, non-cxecutive and mdependent
directors fo maintain the mdependence of the Board, and separate #ts functions of governance
and manapement Az of March 31, 2025, the Board has six members, three of whom they were
executive of whole-time directors and three were mdependent directors. The Board has, on the
recommendation of the Nommation & Remuneration Commuttee framed a policy for selection
and appowntment of Dhrectors, Semuor Management and thew remuneration policy mcluding the
crtena for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other
matters, as required under sub-zection (3) of Section 178 of the Compamtes Act. 2013 and the
same has been hosted on the Company’s website.
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DETAILS OF EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY
QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER
MADE BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The report of the Statutery Auditors for the vear ended 31¥ March, 2025 does not contain any
qualificabons, reservations or adverse remarks

DETAILS OF EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY
QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER
AADE BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE IN HIS SECRETARIAL
AUDITOR REPORT:

The provisions relatng to Secretaral Audst 1= not apphicable to the Company and accordingly
reporting under Clause 134 (3)(f) (1) 1= not apphcable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There were no loans, puarantess or mvestments made by the Company under Section 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013 dunng the year under review

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188
are furmshed m Form No AOC-2 as Annexure - I to this Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

The Company does not have amy activibies regarding conservation of energy, technology
absorption as reqmred to be furmished as annexure to the Directors’ Report i accordance with
the provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) of the Compames Act, 2013 read with Ruole § (3) of the
Compamies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:
The details of total foreign exchange earnings and outgo of the Company as required to be
firnished pursuant 1o Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule B (3) of the
Compames (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are detarled below:
Particulars Amount in Rs.
1. Earmenos in Foreipn Exchance : =
1. Expenditure i Forermn Exchange : -
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STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

In the opmion of the Board of Directors, the elementz of nsk threatening the Company’'s
existence 15 very mummal and hence, reportng under clause (n) of Secton 134 (3) 15 not
applicable to the Company for the year under review

DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY DEVELOPED
AND MPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS INITIATIVES:

As the provisions of Section 135 of the Compames Act, 2013, pertamme to Corporate Social
Responsibihity are not applicable to the Company for the vear 2024 - 2023, the Company has not
developed and implemenied any Corporate Social Responsthility minatves. Accordmply
reporting under Section 135 (3) read with Section 134 (3) (o) of the Companies Act 2013 and
the Compames (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the Company
for the vear under review.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY:

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company dunng the vear under review and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 8 (5) {(n) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 15 not
applicable to the Company dunng the year under review.

DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS, COVERED UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE
ACT:

As required under Role 8 (3) (v) of the Compames (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the detals of the
Deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act are furnished as under-

| 51.No, |  Particulars Amount (Rs.) |
1 -’-.mmmt of deposits accepted during the year —
2 | Amount of deposits remaining unpasd or unclaimed as at -
the end of the year .
3 Whether there has been any default 1n repavment of Nl |
deposits or payment of interest thereon durinz the vear '
and if so, mumber of such cases and the total amount
mvolved.
(1) Atthe begmning of the year
(1) Maximum durng the vear
{11) At the end of the vear

The Company does not have any deposits which are not m comphiance with the requirements of
Chapter V of the Act durmg the vear under review, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 8 (5)
{v1) of the Compames (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 1s not applicable to the Company dunng the vear
ntrder review.
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SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS:

During the previous years of the vear under review, the Company had recerved order from the
National Company Law Tribunal Kochi Bench, Kochu vide order No CP/113/KOB/ 2019 dated
15th May, 2022 dismussed the Company petition without costs which was filed by the petitioners
under section 241-242 of the Compames Act, 2013

Subsequently, The Minonty Shareholders have filed a peution in NCLAT, agamnet the final
verdict of the Hon'ble NCLT which was m favour of the company. Hence, the Company has
filed an affsdavit and the matter 13 pending before the NCLAT.

INTEENAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Managememt of the Company 15 responsible for establistung and mantaining internal
financial controls. These responsibilities mclude the desizn, implementation and mamntenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectivelv for emsurmg orderly and
efficient conduct of 1tz business, including adherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding of
iz assets, prevention and detection of frauds and emors, accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records and tmely preparation of reliable financial information, as requared under the
Compames Act, 2013, The Statutory Auditors have evaluated the system of intemal controls of
the Company and also reviewed their sffectiveness and have reported the Company has. m all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reportmg and that
such infernal financial controls were operating effectively as at the end of the financial year. The
provisions relating to appomtment of mternal auditor was not applicable to the Company duning
the vear under review.

DISCLOSURE, AS TO WHETHER MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS
SPECIFIED BY THE CENTREAL GOVERNMENT UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1013, IS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANY
AND ACCORDINGLY, SUCH ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS ARE MADE AMND
MAINTAINED:

The requirements regarding maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government
under Section 148 (1) of the Compames Act, 2013 1s not applicable to the Company and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 8 (5) (=) of the Companies (Accounts) Roles, 2014 15 not

applicable to the Compary.

STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL
EVALUATION HAS BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE,
ITS DIRECTORS, AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Compames Act, 2013 and the rules made there under the
provisions relatng to the formal anmual evaluabon are not applicable to the company
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DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM:

The company 15 not required to constfute a viml mechamsm pursuant to the provision of the
Compames Act, 2013 and the rles framed there under.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SECURITIES

The Mimstrv of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made it mandatorv for unlisted public Compames
to allot s securities and to provide facility for transfer of securtties in demat mode wef 02™
October 2018, Allotment and transfer of securities in physical mode 15 not allowed we f 02
October 2018. In order to comply with the MCA direction, the Company has taken measures to
dematenalize the shares and Non-Comvertible Debentures (NCDs) with Nabonal Securnties
Depostory Limited and Central Deposttory Services Lomnted.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements m this Boards report descnibing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be forward looking, withn the meaning of the applicable laws, and
regulations Although the expectations are based on reasoriable assumptions, actoal results might
differ.

STATEMENT EREGARDING COMPLIANCE OF WITH THE PROVISIONS
RELATING TO CONSIITUTION OF INTERNAL COMPLIANTS COMMITTEE
UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOAMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

In terms of Rule § (5} (x) of the Compames {Accounts) Rules, 2014, 1t 1z hereby confirmed that
the Company has constituted an Internal Complants Commuttee, to inquire into complants of
sexual harassment and recommend appropnate action. The policy has been circulated among the
employees of the Company and the same 15 extubited i the notice Board of all the business
locations | divisions of the Company. Dunng the vear under review, the Company has not
recerved any complamt of sexpal harasement.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION AMADE OR FPROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND BANKEUPTCY CODE 2016:

During the vear under review, there were no applications made or proceeding pendmg in the
name of the company under the Insolvency Bankraptcy Code, 2016 and accordingly, repertng
under Rule 8 (5) (x1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 15 not applicable.

DETAILS OF DEFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTTTUTIONS:

During the vear under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from banks

and financial metitutions and accordingly, reporting under Rule 8 (3) (xu) of the Compames
{Accounts) Rules, 2014, 15 not applicable.
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HUMAN RESOURCES / STAFF:

Your Dhrectors wish to place on record thew sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts of the
employees at all levels duning the year under review

Thete are no employees m the Company drawing a remuneration of Rs. 8 50,000 - (Rupees Exght
Lakhs Frity Thousand only) and above per month or Rs 1,02 00,000/~ {Rupees One Crore and
Two Lakhs only) and above per anmem and accordingly, reporting of mformation as requared
under Rule 3 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneranon of Managenal Personnel),
Rules, 2014 read with the Compames (Appomntment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel)
Amendment Rules, 2016, 1ssued by the Mimstry of Corporate Affarrs vide Notification dated
30% June, 2016, 1s not applicable to the Company for the vear under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors place on record 1ts smcere apprecianion to the Company's customers, vendors,
Central and State Govemment bodies. Auvdstors. Legal Advisors. Company Secretanes
Consultants and Bankers for thewr continued suppont to the Company dunng the vear under
review. The Board also expressss its gratitude to the Members for their continued trust, co-
operation and support.

By Order of the Board of Directors of

B E D Motors Limited
S5d- Sdi-
William Varghese Chungath Cheru Simon
Chungath Cheru
Place: Thrissur Director Managing Director
Date : 31.08.2025 DIN: 074708 DIN - 00074163
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Annexure - 1 forming part of the Directors” Report for the vear ended 31" March, 2025

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in Sub-5ection (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act,

2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the vear under report
were on an arm’s lemgth basis and were in the ordinary course of business of the

Company.

(a) | Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship |
{b) | Nature of contracts |/ arrangements Hﬂ.ﬂmaﬂi |
| {r:}- Duration of contracts | aﬂﬂ.ugmenis transactons I
(d) | Sahent terms of the contracts or arrangements of ransachons
mncluding value, if any |
(e) | Justification for entening mto such contracts or arrangements or | Not applicabie
I
I

ransachons
| () | Date {s) of approval by the Board
| (g) | Amount paid as advances, if any

(h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed 1o general mechng
as required under first proviso to Secbon 188

S Name of the related party | Nature of relationship
No,
(1 1BRﬂCm‘El-’ﬂl’1d Ll..l.'l-:l.l.IE'd_.__ iﬂﬁuciateﬂm:@mj
2 | BRD Developers and Builders | Associate Comparny
| Lamited
3 | Mr. Chungath Cheru Simon | Managing Director
4 | BRD Fnance Limited Entity n which REMP Relatves of |
EMP Director can  exercise
significant influence
3 | BRD Securties Limited Entity in which KMP. Relatves of KMP:
' Director can exercise significant influence

6 | Rajputana Investment & Finance | Entity in which KMP! Relatives of KMP!
| Limuted | Darector can exercise mgm.ﬁ-:anrmﬂumc:
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7 | M. Jeevan Joy Accounts Manager (Acting CFO)
(From 25.06.2023)

8 | Mr. Bhageerathan G Company Secretary
(From 31.08.2024)

8 | Mr William Varghese C.C Drector

{(b) TWature of contracts / arrangements | transactions

5.  Name of the Related Nature of Contract Amount for the
No. Party vear ended 31%
March, 2025
(Rs.)
! | BRDCar World Rent Received 25,00.000
2 | Rgputana Investment | Rent Recewved 50000 per month
& Finance Limited
3 | Mr. NidheeshOP Remuneration Pad 3,19.624
4 | Mr Bhapeerathan G | Remuneration Pad 3,70.967

{¢) Duration of contracts | arangements | transactions: All the above listed contracts /
arrangements / fransactions are ongoing in nature.

(d} Sahentterms of the contracts or amangements or transachions mcludng the value, iof amy:
Nil. The value of the contracts are as detailed above.

{2} Date (5) of approval by the Board, of any. The transactions mentioned under 51 No.l & 2
above, fall within the purviiew of related party transactions covered under Section 188 of
the Compames Act, 2013 Accordingly, the transaction mentioned under 51. No.1 has been
approved by the Board of dwectors at thewr meeting held on 26.03.2022 and the transaction
mentionied under S| No.2 has been approved and recommended by the Board of directors at
their meeting held on 25.08 2022 and approved by the Shareholders at thewr Annual General
Meeting held on 28 September, 2022,

() Amount paid as advances. if any: NIL.
By Order of the Board of Directors of

B R D Motors Limited
Sdi- Sd/-
William Vaghese Chungath Cheru Simon
Chungath Cheru
Place: Thrissur Director Managing Director
Date : 31.08.2025 DIN: 074708 DIN - 00074163
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1 YNzmes of the assocates or joist veshmes ninich are yet to commence operabions:
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Ferand on behslf of the Board of Directors

ForBEDMOTORS LIMITED
5di- Sdl.
Flace: Thrizswr
Dare: AL0E. 3008 C.C.WILLIAM VARGHESE C.C SINION
Dhirestor Alsnaging Directer
DN « SO0T4TOR DN DD TiT63
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Independent Auditor's Report

Tothe Members BRD Motors Limited

Regiart on the Awdit of the Finandal Stetements Qualifled

Opinian

Wie have audited the Standabone finsncial statements of BRO Motors Limited |*ihe Comgany”), which camgrised the balance sheef
2 ot March 31, 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss and the statement of cash flows for the wear then ended, and notes to
the Inancisd shatarments, including a sumsary ol significant soouwning policied snd othbr explanabory Inlanmation

In Bur apiten snd to the bese af our indormation and scoarding to the explanations given 1o g, excepd for the effeets ol the maer
deseribod im the Basl for Qualified Oplrion secthon of owr repart, the sfaresaid linanclsl state ments phoe & true snd falr vew "
confaimity with the accounting principles generslly scceptod i India, of the state of afTalrs of the Company a3 8 March 3181, 2025
and ProlitToss and ite cash fiows for thi yaar endisd oo that date

Basis for fualfied Opinion

W draw your attention 1o the foliowing matters:

I W draw atention to Note. 300 of the Standalone Mnandial staterments of the company. The company has kng-1erm |nvestments
in subsidiariae, ssocates and group entitles aggregating to 47 MiCrores 2= at 31 March 2025 The company mecords its long-torm
[nwestrnenis ot codt. Changes in butiness envirgnrmnent eould hive o signtlEcant impact on the valtion of these Bvesiments. As per
A%-13 "Accounting for Investments” Para 17 il there & a dedline, other than temparary, in Lhe value of a long Lerm invesimend, the
tarrying amount is refuced to recognize the decline. The compary has not carried out the impaiement test perindically. We kave not
been able to corroborate the Management’s contention of roalizing the carrying value of its Investments, Accordingly, we arg unable
b cormment on the appropristeness of the carrying vaked of such Investiments and their consequential impact on the financlal resuits
and the financlal position of the Caompany 24 2 and far the year ended March 31 3015

ii. Regarding non svailability of confirmations in respect of debit and/or credit balances of Loans, Advandes, Deposits, and Currens
Liatifties, in the absence of such confirmetions, sny provision 1o be made for the sdverss vaniation Incarrying of amouns of these
balances, cannot be guantified, a5 well as the quantem of adjustment if sy, regluired 1o be mats remaing unascartained. (Feler
Mote No 2.21)

iil. We draw your anentien o Note 3,04 w the accompanying standalone financal statements regarding Othes payabla 1o group
concern felales to sarfler years and Irterest thereon, which |3 outstanding s ol the reporting date. According to the information and
expdanations ghven to us, the company has discontinued 115 dealership with Plaggo and has noft [sunched any trade actvltles a5 on
roporting date. on the basik of the financial ration, Agoing and capected dates of roallzation of financial @seets and payment of
financial Babilities, ather informatian exompanying the slandalone financisd sttements, and based on ow Eamination of the
evidence of supporting the essumplions, we belbeve tha material uncertainky ealsts @ on the date of the audil report thal | the
Company s not capabie of mesting i abilities axisting at the date of balance sheot as and when they fall dus within a period of ane
year from the balance sheet date. The Inter corporate loans with the group corcerns are not paid .The interest amount for the
s are due gt the rate of 12%, The interest amounts to 1,24,92,709 for BRO Fnance and 4,32,000 for BRD Security for the year
ending 3161 March 2025

We conducied our sudit of the Standalene Tinanclal satements in accordance with Standards on Auditing [SAs) specified under
section 1430100 of the Companies Act, 2000 Ouwr responsdbllithes endes thome Suandandy sre further described in fhe Audior’s
Responsibilities Tor the Audil of the Financiad Statements cection of our report, We ane independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics Biwed by the institute of Chartered Accountants of Inidla together with the ethical reguirements that are
relevan te gur audil of the financial statements under the provisiond af the Companies Act, 2003 and we have Tullilled our e
ethaesl respacaibilithes in scoofdsnes with thesa reguiremants snd the ICAR Code of Ethscs. We belleve that the audit svdente wi
hiwve pbtained i suffickent and appropriate to provide o besks for out guaiified opinion
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Emphasis of Matter

§

We dran your attention to the fofiowing matters|

I Refes o Nate Na. 2,14 of the Standalone fnarcial statements, The eompany has discontinued the dealerslip with "Plagaia™ in the
year 2020, Cansidering strategic underyianding with suppliers! customens, the company & on the revval made snd, the Comaany's
Board of [irectors {'the Board’) sre esamining svadable optaoms to further incresse salesfincome from operations. Barring
unforesesn circumstances beyond the control of the Company, the Board is confident about the Company’s ability Lo continue as a
going concern, The Cormpany has continung support from its group concerms and on the bais of such support, buséness plans af the
futune & othes Tactoes, the fmancial statement for the year erded 31 March 2022 has been prepased on going concern bashi

i We draw your attention to Mote 2.20. The Minority Shareholders has ffad o petition in MCLAT, agsinst final verdict of the Han'lsle
MELT which was in favor of the company. The management belleves that It s & strong case on menits and & per (he curnent position
of the came the Rability 1 any arising out of this cantingency camnat be determined at thiz stage and ot present no adjustmaont &
reguited n the linanclal statements. Ax per the Informatien from Hon'ble NCALT minority Share Holders has fled a petition agalnst
the fnvorable order of Hon'lile BCLT. Cowmpany has fifad affidavit and the matter i sor settied by NCLT.

Information Ciher than the Financlal Statemwents and Asditoc’s Report Theréon
B The Compary's Board of Directors are-responaible for the other information. The other information comprises the information

Included imthe Annual Reaort, but does nod include the (mancial sraternsnis and our suditor's report theseon, The Annusl Repon i
expacted to e made available to s afver the date of 1his auditor's report

Quir oginion o the fnencial statements does nod cower the other information and we will not expeess any form of aszuranoe
conchision therean,

In connection with oo sudit of the standalone financial stalements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information identified
#have when It becomes avallable and, o dolng 30, consider whather the other miormation [ matedily Inconsistent with the
financial satements o gur knowiedge obitamed in the audit, or atherwing Sppeart 1o be matenally meconled

Whien we read the Annual Report, i we conclude that there s 3 material misstatement thersin, we are regeired (o comemun icate the
raatter t thotl charged with governante ander 54 T20 The auditors mespansitied Rolating to Other Infnrmmation’

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Flnancis] Statements

T

The Company's Boord of Directors is responsitla for the matters stated in section 134(5] of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act”] with
pesper to the pregaration of these standalone financisl statements that glve & true snd fawr view al the linancial pesition, financial
perarmance and cash fiows of the Comgany in acoordance with the sccounting princlples penerally atceptad in india, including the
arcounting Standards spocified under sectaon 133 of the Act. This responsibility 2o includes maintenance of sdequate scoourting
records |n accordance with the provisions of the At Toe safeguarding of the astefs of the Company and For preventing ard detecting
frauds and ather irregulsdties; selection and appheation of sppropriate asccounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
me remionsble and prudent; and detign, rrplementation sd mantenance of adequate mternal firancial cantrals, thet were
operating affacthesdy for enturing the scousscy and comipletensss of the accounting records, relevant to the prepasation and
prissentation of the financlal statemants that gle a true and fale view and are free from materal misstatement, whether due to
fraud arerror

in prepaiing the finzncial statements, the Board of Directos & responsible for assessing the Compary's abllity to continue & 3 gaing
concern, disclosing. a5 applicable, matters refated t0 foing concern and using the going concern basis of sccounting unless the Board
of Directors either infends to fiquidate the Company or (o e gporations, ar hes no realistic skernative bun to do se.

Thiose Board of Hreoiors are #lso respoivible fer oversesing the campany’s financial reparting process.



Ausditor's Responsibilities for the Asdi of the Standalone Financial Statements

B

1a,

L

ir

i3

Our objectives e 1o obialn fesonable ssuranor aboul whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole are frée fram
reateinl misstaternent, whether dus 1o fraed or efmr, ond (o Ssue an swdRocs report that inclutes our oplnega. Reasanable
muiieranoe s 8 Mgk level of assurance bt is ot 8 guarantese that an swdt conducted in sceardance with S8 will dbways detect a
roatérinl misslatement whan it exists. Misstatements can ariseé from fraud or errar and are conshdered material if, individually ar in
the agpregate, thiny could reasonabily be axpected fo (nfluesce the econarms: docisiant of users taken on the basis of thise financial
SLoternens
&5 part of an audit [n accordance with 5As, we evercise professanal judgment and mamtain professional steptlcism theoughout the
audit, We ako;
v ldentify and ascess the risks of matedal misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to froud or errar,
d=ahgi and perfarm sudl provedures reiponribe ta those rsks, snd abitain audd eddence thas is sufficient snd appropriaies to
proratide 3 biasts for our opinion, The rsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraed ks higher than for one
resuiting fram error, a5 freud may involve collussgn, fosgery, intentionad pmisions, msepresentations, or the override gl
intermnl conrpl
= Omtain an understandng of Intermal contral relevant o the audit In order to design sudlt procedures that are appropriate n
the circumstances. Under section 143|131 ){7) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsibde for expressing our opineen oo
whether the company has adeguate intemal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contral,

o Evaluste the approprintensss of sccounting palicles used and the ressopabiencss of accounting estemates and refored
diezclosures made by management,

v Conclude on the appropHateness of management's use of the going contern basls of accounting and, based on the audit
avidence obisined, whether a maderial uncertainby exiits relabed to ovents or canditions that may eat sigaificant doubt on the
Cormpany’s ability to continwe as & poing concern, IF we corelude that a matédal uncertalnty exists, we s reguired to dravw
attentian In our aiditor's report to the related disclbsures In the Standafaone financlad statements or, If such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modify sur opsnion, Our conciusions are bated an the sudit avidenca abtained wp to the date of our auditor’s
repart. However, lullire svenly of eondiions may cause the Compeny 1o cEsie Lo cantinue & & poing conteti

# Evaluata the overall presenmtation, structurs and comtent of the Standalane financlal statements, Including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and evants in 3 manner that achieves fair presentation.

faterlaiy s the magnitude of misstatements Ia the financis| statements thas, Indhviduslly or in sggregate, makes |t probatile that
e economic decisins of @ reasonasily knomwtedgeabie user of the financial statements may be influences. We consider quantitatree
materipfity and gualitative factors in {ij planning the scope of our audit work and in evalusting the results of our worg and (i) to
evaluate e ellect of any ientifed missialements n the Tnancisl staemens.

W communsCate with those charged with governance regarding. among other maters, the planned soope and timing of the audit
and sigrdficant audit findings, inchuding amy signdficant defickenches in mternal conteed that we dentify durng our audit

W alio provide thow charged with goverance with @ statesment that we have complied with rebevant ethical requirements
reganteg Independence, and to communicate with them oll relatronships and other matters that may ressonably be thaught to Sear
on ol indepandence, and where applcable, related safeguards.

Froem ke maties communicated with those changed with goavemande, we detenmine those ratters that were of mast ssgndlicance n
the audit of the financial atatemsants of the current period and are thesefore the ey audil matiers, We describe these matters n our
audinor's report unless law ge regulation prechudes pubdic dsclosure about the matter o when, in agremiely IEre OumsTances, we
determing that a matter showld nat be comemanicated in gur report because the adverse consequences of doing 5o woulkd
reaspnably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Oeher Matter

The Standalone linoncial statements does mot include the share of net podafipsy for the yoor ended 315t March 202500 the
partnerihip frm.who has conthaded it operations.

Cur opinion above on the Standalone Finandal Staterments, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Sequirements below, i

rot rradified in respect of the abowve matters with respect o our reliance en the work done and the reports of the other suditors
and the financial statements Jf financia informstion cenifled by Managemen.,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremonts

I

A5 required by the Companies [Suditor’s Report} Qrder, 2020 ["the Qrder”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2003, we gve In the Anneaure A" & stalement on Che malters speciled n
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appicatée,

B required by Section §43(3) of the Act, we report that:

s} We have sought and obialined all the information and explanations which to the bett of our knowledge and belisl were
necessary for the purposes of gur sudlt.

(B Im our opinkmn, poper books of atcount &y meguired by law have boen kept by the Compary 9 Tar & | appears from our

examimiateon of thase booki

[c] The Balance Sheet, the Starement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement desitt with by this Report aoe ik agraement with
thie baaks of account.

(] In mur spinlen, the aforesaid slandalone financial statements eormply with the Aceounting Standards specified under Secton 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Componies {Accountsh Rules, 2014, Except As-15 Employver Benofic *Refer to Note no 2100
of the financial stateenent

(10n the basks af the written representations recessed from the directors as on 2358 March, 20325 taben on record by the Board of
Directors; none of the directoes |8 disgualified as om 315t March, 202% froen being sppointed as o director In terms of Section 1602
aof the Act

(f} With respect o the adequacy af the mtermnal Tinanclal controls ower Tenclal reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refér b our segarste Repnt In “Annexure BT attsched herewith,

(g} ‘With respect 10 the other matten 1o be included in the Auditor’s Repart bn accordance with the reguirements of Section 197(16]
of the Act, a5 amended, In aur opliien and 1o the best of gur information andd Bcconding to the explanations ghean 1o us, the
remuneration patd by the Compamy to its directors during the yesr & in acoordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Ao

[h] With rexpect 0 the aiher matiers o be included In the Auditor's Repost n speordance with Bule 1] af the Companies | sl and
Ayditors| Mules, 2814 (as amendad), in owroplnlon and (o the best of our information end acconding 1o the esplanations ghven to us:

I. The Company e dizckeed the mmgset of pending Migations on 14 finenclal gosidon A it siandalone Anencial Jatements -
Redar Note 3.9 10 the standabpne fnanciad sTatements.

[l The Company was mot required to recognize a provision s &t March 31, 202% under the applicable Taw or sccounting
glandards, as i daes not have ary material loreseeslie loses on ng-verm contract Including derivative coniracts;

il There were no amounis which were reguired © be transferred to the invesior Educaiion and Protection Fmd by the
Coampany during tha yoar ended Manch 31, 2025,

iv. [3) The management has represented that, to the best af It kmowedge and belief, as disclosed Inthe notes fo the socounts,
no funds hawe been advanced o leaned oc invested (sither from borrowesd funds or share premivm or any ofher sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to ar in any gher persan ar entities, incuding foreign entities (“Intermediaries™], with the
uncerstanding, whether recorded I writing o atherwlie, that the inrermetfiary shall, whethes, directly or Indirecthy, lend o
imvest i other persons or entitees ldentifsed in any manner whatsoever iy or on bena® of the Company [“Usimate Bereficiares”)
or pravide sy grEarantee, security or the e on behalf of the Ukimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 3,45 1o the standalone financial
slatermEnTs )

{bj The maragement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, a5 disclosed in the notes to the acoounts, no
Tunids hive been recedeed by the Company Trom any persan of entity, Inckading Toselgn entities ("Funding Parties™], with the
underitinding, whether recarded in writing or otherwse, that the Compary shall, whether, dgaectly o Indirectly, lend or [mest
in other persons or entitie (dentified in any manmser whatsoever by ar on behald of the Funding Party | "Ultlmote Beneficiaries”)
of provide any guarantes, secufity or the ke on behall of the Utimate Beneficlaries {Reler Bote 3,46 to the standalone financlal
skFomants]; and

(&) Basexl o Such audlt procedures. thal we contkdered reasonable and appropriate m the cireumstances, rothing has Gme o
our nptke that has caesed s o beliess that he representations under sub-classe [3) #nd |b) contain ary material
minstatement.
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. The comparty has nof declared or paid any dhidend during the year In contraventiom of the provisions of section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Wi, Based on our examinaton, which included test checks, the Compary has used sccounting software for maintaining is
books of account for the financiad year endad March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording sudit trail (edit bog facility and
the same has pperated throughout the yeor for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, during the course
af put audd we did nol cpme sorods sy instance of the 2udit trail featude besng tampered with.

A3 prosdso to Rule 311 of the Companies [Accounts Rules, 2014 is applicable from Aprd 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g} of
the Companies (Audit and AudSors) Bules, 2014 an preservation ol audit trall a5 per the statutory requirements for record
retentlan is not apolicable for the firaneiz year ended Mareh 31, 2025,

For Balan & Co.,
{hartered Accounlants

ICAI Firm rentraion numbss 003405

Nk
P. bchanoias FCA
Pariner [IANQ0E1262)
Plwwe: Aluva LN 2502 262 BMHADO 792
Dage: 30082025
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Annexure A referred to In clause 1 of paragraph on the ‘Report on Other Lepsl snd Repulatory Reguirements’ of our report of even dats

In terms of the informatien and explanations sought by us and ghven by the Company and the books of account and recerds examined by
us i the normal course of audin and to the best of cur knowledge and belief, we state that:
1] [} [A) The Company has malntained proper records showing full partsculars, including guantitative detalls apd situation of
Froperty, glant and eguigmaent. *
(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full panticulans of intangibie asets

b} Accorifng o the nformation end explanationd given 10 us and on the basis of gur examinstion of the recards of the
Company, the Compary has 2 regular programme of physical verlfication of its property, plant and equipment by which
all Moperty, plant and squipmeant aré werified i 8 phased manner owar a period of three yean. kn accondance with tha
programme. certain Property, plant and eguipment were verified during the yesr, In our opinion, this peripdicity of
physical werificatian i reasnnable having regard 10 the size of the Cormpany and the natwe of 09 aseete. Mo matenal
digcrepancies wers noticed on such venfication,

el Accordng 1o the information and explanations given by the Management, the tithe deeds of all the immaovabie properties
[other than properiies where the Company 15 The lsuee snd the lepss agresments sre duly executed In Davour of The
lesses) are Beld in the name of the Company. *

fdl - According to the mformation ed explanations given 1 us and on the basis of ow exarmination of the recands of the
Compay, the Compary has nod recaloed (35 propecty, plant sd egulprent [Inchuding Hight-of-ute assetd] or ntanglble
assets or both curng the wear,

{6} Accordag to the miormation and eplanations grven 10 us and on the Basiv of pur examinatian of the records of the
Campairy, there are na procecdings initisbed or pending againet the Company for hotding @y benami property under thie
Frohibition af Benami Propesty Transactions A4t 1988 and rules made therewnder,

* Documents redated to the additions in Immavable property and infrastructure facilities in the books of accounts
consequent to the seanch and Honorable settlement commission order is not available for verfication, we accepted the
management representation related wo the addeions.

fi] [a} The Company hes discontinued s operation and not holding any Inventories on the Balancg sheet date, accardingly, the
retpulremients wnder clasive 3 {1} (a) af the Order are not sgpliciblie to the Chaipany and hencs nob commented g

b The Company lias not been sanctianed working capltal limits In excess of T5 crore, |n aggregate, @ any polots aof Ume
during the year, from banks or financial Bstitutions on the basis of secrity of current assets and henie reporting under
clauze Hiijib) of the Dindar is not applcahis

[0 (&l According to the infermation snd explanations glven 1o ws, the Company has nos progded secerity or granted any boans
of pdvances n the nature of loans, secured or unsstured, to compenies, Tirms, Limited Uability Partnerships or any other
partles dunng the yess, Except corparate guarantea ghven 1o ralated entities

by According o the information and explanations given by the aenagement and audit proceduns performed by ws, 1he
imvestrments made, guarantees provided, security ghven and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
dclvances in the nature of loans snd guaranbees provided s not prefudiclal to the company’s Interest,

According to the Information =nd explanations gaen by the management and awdit procedure pedformed by us,
Company has not provided security of granted any loans o advances inthe natwe of lpans, secured or wnsecurad, hence
sirb-clauses il (o), (), (£), () under clavse (i) of the Order are not appbicahss,

1] Ir pur opinlon and according 1o the informatson and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the prosdsians of
segtian 185 and 186 of the Companles Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investrments, guarantees, and security,

I¥) The Company fras nol sccepted sny depasits within the meaning of Sectons 73 1o 76 of the Act and the Companies [Acceptance
of Depoiins) Rises, 2014 (a3 amanded]. Accordingly, the provisons of cliuse 3{v) of the Order are not apolicable
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el

(i)

()

[l

A5 Informed b us, the maintenance of Cost Recores has not been specified by the Centrat Government urder sub-section {1) o

Lection 148 ol the At in respect o the sctivities carried on by the caompany. Thus, reporting undes cEause 3w of the order &

not applicable 1o the Comipany

{a} The Company s regular n depositing undlsputed ststutory dues including provident fund, employees’ siate Indurance,
Inpoeme-lan, goods and service tax, cess,, duty of customs, duty of extise, value added e and any othes statutory dues to
the approgriate authortles.

According to the Enfarmation and eaplanalions given 1o wi and audilt procedure performed by us, na undspited amounty
payatla in respect of provident fund, empleygess’ State msurants, income-tad Cess, poods and Sendice tax, goods and
worvice tad,, duty of custams, duty of exciwe, valye added tax and other statuiory dues wira outifanding as at Manch 31,
2023 for & peripd of mose than six months from the date they became payable.

b} According to tha information and explanations givan to us, there are no dues of goods and service tax, provident fund,
pmployees’ fiate insurance, goods and senice tax, cess, duty of customs, value added tax which have not been
depodted on sccount o ary dispute,

The particulars of dies of income tax and other tae matters as st 31st Masch, 2025 which haive not Been fully depasited
an deeounl of dispute, are as lolows:

Mature of the  Nature of Dues Amount Period " Forum where
Statute o - Fﬂ"_
Buikdng Ta Budding tax under Dispute 2154 Lakiy Wadinus years High Cowrt. Kerala

T matters under cspute and VAT masters under dispute = Reler Note Mo 3.29 to the standslone fimancial statements
According to the information and explanations given to us and sudit proceduns performed by us, the Company has not
surrendired ar disdosed sny rAanERCTON & Income i e Tay ASessments undes the Income Tex &1, 1961 (43 of 1961 ) during
the year, Tharefore, the provisions of dawse 3{wis] of the Order are not applicable to the Compary,

{3} In gur opindon and sccording to the Information and explanations given by the managemend, the company has nat
defaulted in repayment af loant o ather Borrewings or in the payrment of nterest theroon (o any bender ather than the

Group Entities,

{Bf  Aecprding o the miormation snd esplanationd given to ug and on the bask of our examinaton of the records of the
Company, the Company hed not been declored o willhul defaulter by any bank or inascial inatitution ar pavesmmient o
povernment suthorty,

fe}  According to the information and edplonations given to us by the managemaent, the Company has not obtained any term
Ioans. Accondingly, clause 3(dic) of the Order s not applicable.

g} According tothe informaton and explanatons given to us and an an overall siamination of the Fnancial Siatemsents of
the Company, funds raised on shaort-term basls hawe, prima fade, not been utilived during the year for longterm
pif poses by the Compary,

{e}  According to the information end expanations given to ws and oa an overall examination of the financial ststements of
the Comphany, we report that the Company has Aot taken any funds from any entity or person on sCcount of o 1o meet
the obigations of it subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, Clause 3(inje) of the Oroer i
not spplicable

i Accordng to the Information and explanations glvan to us and audit procedune performed by ug, the Campany has nat
ramied boans during the yaar an the pledge of securtses held in s subgidiaries oc associnte companies.

|8} According to the Information and explandtion glven by the Mapagement and audit procedure pedosmed by us, the
Company has nat raised any monay by way of initlal public offer or Further public offer during the year,

b3 Accordeng to tho miormation and p;ll‘:n.rl:iun'l gren 1o us ard on the batit of our maminatson of the recorde of tha
Company, the Corrpany has not made any preferential allolment or private plecement of shares or fully or parily
conwertible debeniures during the year, Accordingly, clause (b of the Order is not 2pplicable

{a} Baied on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the infarmation and explanations given
ta us, considering the principles ol materlality sutined |n Stepdards on Auditing, we report fraud By the Company
employee or on the Company has boen notioed or seported duting the course of the audit. During the cowse of the
sudit for the financial ves ending 31st maech 2025, a case of financial kregularity was identified invohing
mivapproprintion of funds by an emploves 0 the company, The estimated fToancial impact of the Traod |5 Ry
43,35 509/

Managarmant has Inltated disciplingry actlon agairst the Individual (meohasl and an AR was Tl on
19/D6,202%5 &1 Puduskadu, under FIRL Ko, OB34, invoking Sectons L84}, A1E{4), The mater is currantly untar
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investigation by the iocal law enforcement authonties. As per the FIR the amount reported (3 70,85 959 a5 on
23,/04/2025.

Mo repont under sub-section (120 of section 143 of the Companies Act hes been filed by the auditons in Form
ADT=4 g presrited under rule 13 ol Companies { Aol and Audives) Rules, 2004 with ke Central Government;

by Bccordng 1o the Infarmption and explanations gven 1o us, nb whistie-blower complalivs haee been refeived during The

year, Therefare, the prosdsions of clause 3 aflc) of the Order are not apphcabis to the Company;
Mocording to the Bnformaton and eaplanations grven to us, the Comipany & not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, ciause 3(xi) of the
Quder i nol applcatie,

Apcarding to the mformateon and explanations gheen by the management and sudit procedures peormed by us, trangictions

with the relsted parties are in complience with section 177 and 186, 188 of the Act where apolicable and the detalls have been
desclosed in the notes 10 the financial statements, a3 regured by the appliceble accounting standards.

To tho bost of I;l.l"..ﬂl:“ﬂl:h:.rd nqwq:|t'nlp-¢_,1hn Cormpany i rhﬂ:rnqufnd to fave the internal Auditor wystom commaensurato
with the slze and nature of its business, Accordingly, dause 37 of the Oréer i not spplicalsie.

According to the niormation and explarations given by the management and awdit procedures performed by ug, the Company
has nak entered intg any nan-cash transaciions with directars or persons cannected with him a3 referred to in section 192 of
Cormganiey Act, 2003,

[a] Tha provisions of saction A5-L4 of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 (2 of 1934] are not appiicable 1o the Company.
Accordingly, the requirsment to report on clause [wd)(a) of the Order is not applicable 19 the Company.

by The Company |5 nod engaged in sny Non- Barking Financlal or Mowing Finanoe scihities, Acoordingly, the reguiremem fo
repart on clause [nila) of the Onder |s not applicahie tothe Company,

{e)  The Company is ot & Core Inwestment Company (C6C] a5 defined In the regudations made by the Reserve Bank of Indéa.
Accordingly, clause 3 xvifc] of the Order B not applicabibe to the Company

{d)  Acconding 1o the infoemation and esplanations prosided o ws during the course of sudly, there &8 no Core Investment
Compaivy 85 a part of the Growp, henda, thie reguirement o repart on (ause 3ol d] of the Order |s not applcable to the
Comipany.

The Corrgany has Incurmed cash losses in the curnent and In the iImmediately preceding finani il year,
There him besn resigniation of the statubory auditors dunng the year and new swlitor bas bean apponted S tha EGM
Acrordingly, cause 3wviil] of the Grder is applicable

O the basis of the financial retips disclosed in Note 3.30 to the sccompanying stendalone financlzl statements, ageing #nd
axpected. dates of resization of financial assets and payment of financial lishilities, other information accompanying the
stan dalane financial staternents, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, which cases us 1o believe that material uncestainty exisis as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capsble of mesting it lsbilties aeisting at the date of balance sheet as and whan they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheei date,

According 1o the information and explanations gven by the Management snd sufll procedures performed by us, the C58
reguiremsent nooms meationed in secteon 135 1) of the Corrganies Ar1 2013 doeon't apolicabée to the corapany durbhg the year,
hence the regulrerments dvder clause 3 () of the Ordes are not sgplicable to the Compary and not commented wpon.

The Companies |Auditos's Report] Ordes |CARDY 2 reparted an the standalone finarcal aterments of the Campany. Therefore,
the presdsion of clause 3 axi) of the Order B not appheable to the Comparmy,

For Balan & Co.,
Chariered Accowntanty
IC&1 P regetipian nymber BI03ank

X
P. bAchandas FCA
fariner (W No 021262

Place: Aluva LIEDEN: 25071 262BMHAO04 792
Dt I0.08.2025
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"Annewure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Repart on the intemal Fingndal Controls under Clausa [1) of Sub-ssction 3 of Soction 143 of the Companlies Act, 2013 [“the Act™)

We have audited the inlernal fnancial controls oves Fnancial reporting of BRD Mators Limfed {"the Company”| & of March 31,
095 in cordunction with our awst of the standalone financlal statements of the Cormpany for the wear endad on that date.

Managemant's Responsibility for intemal Finandal Controls

The Company's managerment i respamible for establighing and maintaining intermal financial cantroh bazed on the internal conine|
ower linancial reporting eritena estahlished by the Company considering the exsential components of intemal contrd stated In the
Guldance Note ob Auct of Intemnal Financial Controls Owver Finartial Reporing isued by the Instute of Chartered Accountsnts of
Iz These responsibilities include the desgn, implamentation ard malntenance of adequate internal finanelal controls that were
tnpeerating effectively for ensuring the arderdy and effident corduct of its business, incuding sdherence to company's policies, the
sateguarding of ity sisets, the preventlon and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely pregaration of rellabbe financlal information, as required wnder the Companles Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

D responsiblity s 1o exarets an oplnlon en the Dompany's internal Anamcial contreds aver finencial reponting based on aur 2wdil
We conducted our audt in sccordance with the Guidances Mote on Audit of Internal Finandial Contrals Ower Financiad Reporting
[the “Guldangs Mefe"] and the Standarnds on Auditing, Hsued by ICAL and deemed 1o be prescribed under sectiéin 14310} of the
Companies Act, 2013, 10 the extent applicable toan audit of Internaf financial controls, both apaliceble to an audit of Internal
Financial Controts and, both ssued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Gokdance Naba
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasenable assurance about whether
pdequate internal financial controls over financlal reporting was established and maintained and If such controls operated
effectively in all materisl respects.

Ot sl ® invalves performing grocedured to abltaln sudil evidence about the sdeguacy af the internal Arancial contral vatess
ower financial reporting and thelr aperating eff ectiveness, Ouwr audit of Intermal financlal controls over financisl reporting included
obrainmg an understanding of internal financlal controds over financial reporting, assassing the fsk that a matensl weakness easrs,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal conerol based on the assecsed risk, The protedurss
selected depend on the awditar’s julgement, nchading The asessment of the rsks of matérdal mistabement of the financial
statemants, whather due to fraud or emor

We beleve that the audit evidence we have obitained bs sulfleient and appreprinte to provide & Basis for aur st apnoan on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financls| reparting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financlal Reporting

A comparry's inlernal Tnanciad confral over linancial reporting 58 process designed Lo prowide reasonabile assurance regarding the
reiabifity of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for external purpoass i accardance with genarally
Accepied accounting principles. A company's Intemal financlsl conmrol over financial reporting includes these palicies and
prroceifuney that (1) pertils bo the maintensnce of records thal, bn ressanable detsd], sceorately and farly seflect the tanssntions
and dispositions of the asssts of the company; (2] provide reasonable assurance that transacions are recorded as necessary to
permi prepacation of financal statements In accordance with. generally acoepied accounting peinciples, and that receipts and
eapentditures of the company are belng made anly 0 acardance with authorlsatons of menagement and @rectors of the
company; and [3) prvide reasonable sssirance regarding preventlon or timely detection of unauthorlzed soguisition, use, o
disposmion of the company’s assets that could have 3 material effect on the financial statemants
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Inherent Umitations of Internal Fnancial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

fecausa of the inherent limltations of internal financlal comtrols over financial reporting, Including the possibiity of
colludion oF Improper management override al comirols, materisl mastatements due o o of rawd mey oo
andt niot be detacted. Ao, projections of any evaluation of the imarmal financial controls over finandal reparting to
future perlods are subject (o the risk that the mtermal flrancial contral oves financial reporting may become
inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degroe of compliance with the polices or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in 2 matersal respocts, an adequate internal financial controis systerm over
Tnancial reporting and such internal fnandal controls over Anacsdal reporting were operating elfectively as o
March 31, 2023, based on the infernal control over financial reporfing criteria established by the Company
eaniiiering the asentlal companents of intermal contiol stated in the Guldance Nots on Audt of intermal Hnancls
Controls Ower Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Balan & Co.,

Dharlered Avcouriznts
A Erm ragistration rumbar: D0H3405

Sk
P. Mohandps FCA
Pastiier (4Mo,02 1267
Phace Aluva LIDiN: 23021262 BMIEEO0K7T92
Dluge: 30,08 2025



BRD MOTORS LTD
[AE amounts in T 000, unless atherwise stated)

Balance Sheet As At 315t March, 2025
Aszat Az at
Farticulirs MOt parch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Sharehobders’ funds
(&) Share capasl 3.0 2 43 90E 49 243 90849
ib) Resarves and surpius .02 (1,29.451.62) [98 887 30
(c) Money received against share warmants
1 Share application money pending aloumnent 2
3 Mon-current liabilities
{2] Long-term borrowings .63 107 70581 10770582
(b) Deferred tax Labisities [Nat .04 : =
(c] Ceher Long term liskelites 104 27574 89 B7 574 8%
i(df Leng-term provisions 3.0 55,334 98 .
4 Current lisbilities
(2] Short-term borrowings 107 124278 .
ib] Trade payahiet 304 1E5.56 -
(] Othar current liabilities 309 BE9.20 264,65
(d} Short-term provisicns 310 . .
Total R RIS B AT
Il ASSETS
1 Mon-current assets
{2} Property, Flant and Equipment and Intangible a35a1s
(i) Broperty, Plant and Equiprent 111 52 64594 51,7925
[ii] Intangils assets . -
(1) Capital wark-Inprograds in
(] Intamgible assers under development - =
(b} Mor-ourrent investments 3.12 272,050 27104973
(o] Dofarred tas st (Rat) 3.13 30.441.70 122530
(di Long-term koans and advances 114 2120 32 212933
(&) Dther Ron-Curtent 2558ts 3.15 2:719.33 271938
1 Current assets
(2] Current investments 114 . -
(b} Imsentorias 317 -
(c] Trade receidakles 118 - -
id] Cash and cash sgivalents 319 154.08 44535
(&} Short-term loans and sdeances 3.0 11, 238,21 10,063,485
() Other current assets i 18191 127,60
Total RN BT L 56660
Summmany Dfﬁﬂ.ﬁliﬂﬁ'li accaunting poficies i
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
I termes of our report attached. For and on befaif of the Board of Mrectors
For Balan and Co BRO MOTORSLTD
Chartered Accoumtants
ICAL Firm fegistration nsmber: 0003405 5d/- Sd/-
C. C. William Varghese Simon Chery C.
Chairman Managing Diredior
£ DO 08 ) [Ddi; BOOT4163)
F. Mohandas, FCA 5d/- 5d/-
Fartrer lesvan Joy Bhageerathan G
Rdemborchip no- 071263 Accounts Managar Company Seorotany
Place - Aluva Place - Thnzsur

Data - 30.08.2025

Date - 3000820025




BRD MOTORS LTD
[AH amounti in T 000, unless otharwise stated)

Statement OF Profit And Les: For The Year Ended 3151 March 2025

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes  ppareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Revanue from operalion: 3.2 - -
Il - Other income 323 4 Th7 25 315460
I Total Income(l + |“ I,i‘ﬁ-!..ﬂl_ m
IV Expenses
Cosl of materials consumed 324
Purchasas of Stock-in-Trade 335 - -
Changes in inventories of Finished goods ,\WIP and Stock-in-Trade 326 - -
Employas bensfitg eapanisa 3.27 &50.59 il 53
Fmance Cost 378 - 441 43
Depreciation and amortization expenss 3319 11654 3 85654
OThor expenset 330 63 640 ES E9630
Total expenses — bBa547.88 570579
W Profit before sxceptional and edraordinany tems and 2o (1Y) [59,780.73) [2,561.19)
Wi Excaptional toms - -

Vil Profit before extreordinary items and tax (V- Vi}
Wl Extracrdinary ltems

1K

X

nl

Praofit before tax (VIl- VilI)

Tax expense:
- Current tax

- ShoryiExcess) provision of tax relating 1o earkar years
- Doferred tux charge [banefit)

Infome 4K EXpeEnse

Profit {Loss] for the period from comtinuing operations

NIl Brofi/(loss) from discontinuing oparations
Xl Tax enpende of discontinuing cpeTations

XNV Profie/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (alter tax)

Profit/ (Loss) [X1 + XIV)

Eamings Per Equity Share | Base and Difured |
iMominal value of shares Rs. 10 each]

331

4.32

Weighted average equity shares used in computing eamings per equity share

= Basic and Diluted

{29,216.40)

129 216 0]

2,23 90,849

2.43 504

Sumrmany nfsi‘gniﬁunt atcounting policies

The aCoom parwin; nokes are an Enr.e;ral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.

For Balan and Co
Chartered Accountants
FCAY Firm registration msmber: O003£05

Chairmizn

Sd/-
. C. William Varghese

| DM -OO07 & T0R)

P. Mohandas. FLA
Partrer
Memberchip noc 011263

legwvan lay

Place - Abuva
Catg - 30,08 2025

Edf-

Accounts Manager

For and on behaff of the Board of Directors
BRD MOTORS LTD

54/
Simon Cher C.
Marnaging Diracior
{ DN DODT4163)

24/~
Bhageerathan G
LCompary Secretary

Place : Thrtssur
Date - 3008 2025
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BRD MOTORS LTD
(AlF amourts in %000, unless otherwiad statad)

Indirect Method Cash Flow Statement For Year Ended 3152 March 2025

: Year ended March 31,
2015 J0l4
Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
{Loss)f Profit befare tax (59,780.73) {2,56119)
Adpustments ta reconzile [loss)/profi pefore tax 1o net cash Naws
Depraciation and amort sation Fxpanss

Finance Costs

(Prefit]/Lods om salefwrine off of progerty, plant and equipmen: [net)
Intsrest Incoms

Operating Profit before Working Capltal Changes

A djustrments for (increase)fdecrease in operating assets:
Trads Raggivahias
Loans and Addvances
Tds Rafurd
Damer Cusrremt and Non-Currest Ausaty
Inwentodies spd Right of return sssens
Adjustmants for increase ) [decreass] In operating liabilities:
Lhort tmrm borrowings
Trade Payables
ner current, Pen-current @nd refund llabilinies
Changes in Working Capital
Cash Ganarated from Operstiong
income Tax Pad
Met Cash From Operating Activities

Cash Fiow From Investingactinties :

Purchase of PPE Ihl'.lu-ﬂ-ﬂl iﬂ!ﬂ"l ibdz, Caniral WIP znd Capiad sdvanoet
Procoeds from t3ls of property, plant 3nd equipmant
Corstruction-Capitad WIF

Intaresy Bacsived

Saie of Sharas and Mutuzl Funds

Provisign gn investmant

InrestimEns i mutesd fonds snd shanes

et Cash From Investing Acivities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Procesds/repsyments) from kong-term borrowings {net]
Interost Paid

Dividend paid

et cash Mows used in financing activities

Mat [decraase]fincreass in cash and cash pquivalents
Cash and cazh sqaiveients at the beginning of tha year
Cash and cash equivalents ot year end [ Note Mo .19 |

11654 431505
. 441 43

(3001 {2.70]
L NEEE ]

(1.174.73) 3,293.00
85201
[54.31) 1t 41
134278 12, 34470
18956
704.55 o1 45
1.954.86 15, 740,56
{57,609 32) 17,774.64
(852 01) {207.43)

[58.561.33] 17.467.22

(1,073 36) [17.019.00)
5.00 270
5033404

58.266.07 {17.016.30)
(441.43)

- fad1.93)
[295.31) R
449 39 415 o0

L7 N wI3g

Thn AcTompRnying notes are an tegrad part of the financial satements,

In tesms of our report artached.

Farand on Balalf of the Board of Dirscary

For Batan and Co BRD MOTORS LTD
Chiartered Atcoisfitants /-
ICA| Firm registration number (003405 €. L. Wiliam Vargheso
Chaisman
{M:0007 4708]
cd/-
B. Mohandas, FLA leevan loy
Partnar Accounts Manager

Membershia no: 021282

Place | dluva
Diate - 30008, 2015

w.
Limon Chere C,
Managing Diractor
{DIN: DOO7F41A3)
i
Bhageerathan &
Company Secretary

Mace : Aluva
Dete - 30.08. 3025
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Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Company Overview

B R D Motors Limited ('the company') i a public limited compary incorporated in the year 1999,
The company has discontinued the dealership business in the year 2020 and i= on the revival
made, exploring different business solutions.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost corvention of the accrial basis.
GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standands as prescribed under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014, the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified).
All assets and laibilides have been classified as current and non current as per the
company’s normal operating cycle and other critiries s&t out in the schedule 11| of the
companies act 2013, Based on the nature of services and their realisation in cash and
cash eqguivalent, the company has acertined its operating cyde as 12 month for the

purpase of currentfnon current dassification of assets and laibilities.

Prudential norms: The company complies all the material aspect, with the prudential
norms releating to the income recognition, asset classification and provisioning for bad
and doubtiul debls and other matiers, specified in the direction issued by the Reserve

bank of india as applicable 1o the company.
2.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and

assumptions considerd in the reported amount of asset and laibilities{ including
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condgent laiilinies) as on the date of financial statements and reported income and
expenses during the period.
Management befives that the estimates used in the prepration of the financial statements

are prudent and reasonabie. Actuat results could differ from these estimates.Any revision

to acoounting estimates i< recoganised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recoganised to the extend that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the enmparny and the revenue can be easly measured. The following specific recoginaton
criteria must also be met before revenue i recoganised.

Income accounted on acorual baisis,

2.4 Praperty, Plant & equipment’s
ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impalrment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises the cost of matenals and direct labor, any other costs directly

attributable to bringing the itém to working condition for its intended use, and estimated

costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of praperty, plant and

eguipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only IF it [5 probable

that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of

tangible assets which are carried at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.5 Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written
down Value (WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on useful [ife of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule | 1o the Companles Act, 2013, In respect of additions or extensions
forming an integral part of existing assets, depreciation i provided a5 aforesaid over the
residual life of the respective assets.
* Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e; from [up to] the
date on which asset is ready for use [dizposed of].
Intangible Assets are amortised an a Straight-Line basis over the estimated useful economic fife
Computer Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is classified as an
intangible asset, and amortised over a period of five years, being its estimated useful life.

Assels & Usefil life's

Building - 60

Furniture & fitures, Electrical fittings - 10

Computer and data processing unit.  Server and Networks - §
End User Devices- 3
Office Equipments -5
Air Conditioner & DG set -5

Viehicies Two Wheelers - 10
Four Wheeler - 8
Computer software - 5

2.6 Inventories

The Entity has discontinued its operation and not carrying any Inventories on the Balance Sheet
Date.



2.7 impairment

The management periodically assesses, using external and intemal sources, whether there is

an

indication that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the

carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher

of
the asset's net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventful disposal. An
impalrment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only it the reversal can bed related objectively
o an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an
asset 15 increased fo s revised recoverable amount, provided that This amount does not
exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined [net of any accumulated
amaortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
years,

2.8 Employee benefits
Short Term Employes Benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months
of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee bensfits and they are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service, The Company
recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employes benefits expected 1o be
paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (scorued expense)
Other long term employes benefits; Entitlements Lo annual leave and sick leave are
recognized when they accrue to employess. Sick keave can only be availed while annual
leave can either be availed or encased subject to a restriction on the mazimurm nidmber of

accumulations of leave,

a . Gratuity
During the year there are no employees who are entitied for gratny
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b . Provident Fund
EEigible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a
defined contribution plan. During the year there are no employees eligible for the above
privident fund plan.

2.9 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amorfization of ancllary costs incurred in connecton
with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from fareign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of
an asset that necsssanily takes a substannial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur
2.10 Income taxes
The company has carried deferred tax ascets recognized on depreciation in an earlier year
but disring the year we have not provided deferred tax asset provision which is based on
the likelhood of future taxable Income.
We have not recognized deferred tax assets as the company incurred huge fosses in past
few years and also during the current year. There will not be sufficient taxable profit in
future periods that support the recognition of these assets as per our judgment and it can
be provided as and when the company able to generate profits.
2,11 Earnings per share
The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with AS 20,
Earnings per Share, as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Basic
eamings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding for the year, Diluted eamings per share

reflect the potental diluton that could occur If securites or other contracts @ issue equity
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shares were exertised or corwerted during the year. Diluted earnings per share are
computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential
equity shares outstanding at the year end.

2.12 Trade receivables and Loans and advances
Loans and advances are stated after making adequate provisians for doubrful balances.
There are no trade receivables.

2,13 Investments

Az on date of the balance sheat there are o iImdestments.

2,14 Discontinuing Operations
The company has discontinued the dealership with "Piaggia” in the year 2020.
Considering strategic understanding with suppliers/ customers, the company is on the
revival mode and, the Company's Board of Directors | 'the Board') are examining mvailable
optons to further Increase sales/income from operations. Barring unforeseen
circumstances beyvond the control of the Company, the Board iz confident about the
Company's ability to continue &s 2 going concern. The Company has continuing
sypport from its group concerns and on the basis of such support, business plans of the
future & other factors, the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been
prepared on going concern basis.

2.15 Segment Reporting
The Company has discontinued its operations; hence there is no separate reportable
basiness of geographical segments as per AS- 17 "Segment Reporting”.

2.16 Cash & equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks and corporations.
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the
date of purchase of thrae months or less and that are readily convertible to known



amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
2.17 Cash Aow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accrualks of past or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows
from opeérating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based
on the available information. Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
manths or less from the date of acguisinon), highly liguid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.
2,18 Lease
Where the company |5 lessee
Dhuring the current year company has not operating lease its office premises or any other

purpose.

Motes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Where the company is the lessor

Assets subject to operating lease are included in the fived assets. Lease income on
operating lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Costs, including
depreciation, afe recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss

2.19 Exceptional ltem
When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary
activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the erterprize for the period, the nature and amount of such

material iterms are disclosed separately as exceptional items,
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2.20 NCLT Proceedings against the Petition filed by the Minority Share Holders of the
Company
The Minority Shareholders has filed a petition in NCLAT, against final verdict of the
Hon'ble NCLT which was in favor of the company. The management believes that itis a
strong case on merits and as per the current position of the case the lability If amy arizing
out of this contingency cannot be determinad at this stage and at present no adjustment i
required in the financial statements, As per the infarmation from Hon'ble NCALT
minority Share Holders has filed a petition against the favorable order of Hon'ble NCLT.
Refer Note 2.27, Compny has filed affidavit and the mater is under progress.
2.21 The balarce of Loans and Advances, Deposits and Current Liabilities etc. are
considered as per books of account, pending confirmations and reconciliation. In the opinion
of the management, since the amount due to/ from these parties are fully
payablefrecoverable, no material difference ks expected to arise at the tme of sentlement,
requiring accounting effect in a3 on 31-03-2025,
2.22 Provisions and Contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to seftle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the
present obligation at the Balance Sheat date and are not discounted to its present value.
These are reviewed at each year end date and adjusted to reflect the best current estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-0ccurrence
of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to seftle the obfigation or & reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.
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3137 Additions| lttl.i.ll.l'm[ Information

Particulars Mumergtor Denamingtne 3103.3005 31.03. 2024 % of vanseqe®
Current Ratia (Emes) Current Asset Current iabilsting 463 4071 -BE 49%
Debr-Equity Ratio (rimas) Tona g=nr Shareholders squity 055 o074 IR 28N
I:l.ﬂ: Service Coverags Ratin Eifr'fﬂﬁ avaizhes for debs Pebt service A (440) WA
[Himas] TArviCE
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:::; . : Ta Tatal Purchass Closing trafe payalis - YA BLA

NetT Capta! Turnoves rann

: Mgk Safex Ayerage working capital - . ML,
||

33z ™ the opinizn of the management . e curment sssets, ioans and advences shall realss the vadug 5 shawn in tha belancs shest,
reafized in the narmal coore of BuTnpes.

2.39 (ther notes mx raguired by Schedule |li of the Act are either nil or not applcable hance not disclosed.

The company kas a single reporiable segment e financing which has similar risk & fetum for the punpose of AS=17 on Segment
3.40 Reporting’ notifed under the Companiss Aooourting Siamdard) fules, 1006 as amenbded The compary operates in 3 sinmgis
gocgraphical sagmaent e, domastic

Additional Regidatory mfermation as per MCA notificatan
341 The Company dossr't heve any immovable Propesty whoze tiths deeds are not hald in the name of the Company.

The compeny doen't hold =sny bensmi groperty under the Banami Transactiona [Prohihitian) Act, 1988 {45 of 1088} and rulss mads
thergunder znd no procasdirgs nave heen inltzted or pending against e company far 1he same

ifa

343 Tne Company has not révaleed s Propamy, Fan and Equiamen during te linancial year 14-15
3.2 The Company has not revaived o5 iInangicla amess during the financial wear J4-15

The Compamy Nas not been dedlared @5 2 withal defaaltar oy any lender who has powars to declars & compary 35 3 withel defauster
345 gt any tme during the financial year or after the end of reporting periad but before the dote when finandal staternents ane
amoroved
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346 The company dogn’t heve any transaciions with companies siruck off undar secoon 248 of the Companies Act, 3013 or secrion
580 of Companiss Act 1955

The Compemy does not hawve any transsctan which iz not reconded in the bookr of sccownt= but has been srmendered or disclomed
347 meimcome during the y2ar in the 183 grsessments undsas the income Tax Act 1961[such a8, search or sufesy ar any other relevant
provizions of the incoma Tax Act, 1861)

The Company has not grven any loens or advances in the neture of loars to promaoters, dinectors, EMPr and the related parties |23
348 defined under Compamiss Act, 2013} sither sevesaily or joinaly with 2ny olber pearson 1h3t g 2] repayablz on damand:; of b

without specifying any terms or pariod of repaymant

140 Tha Compary does not kave sy charges or satisfaction which &yt o be registered with tha Hegistrar of Companies {ROC]
hepand the siatatery erlod

3 50 Company has not braded/irvestad in crypto currency of virtual cisrrency foe the correnat inancial pear and previous pess

381 Tne Company hasn't advencad or imansd or invested furds to any other persorish or antmplies], moluding forslgn entities
|intermediaries ] with the undemstanding that the Intermadiary shall:
Diractly or indirectly lend or imvest in octher perzons or ertitisa identified in &0y mannad whet so ever By ot oh behalf of the

rampary (Uitmars Beneficianies) or prowads amy gusram=e. security or tha ilke 1o or pn pehalf of the Uinimate Bensficianes.

183 Tre Compary hasm't recedvad any fund from ary personds] or sntmy|les), inchedeng forslgn entities {(Fanding Farty) with ths
understanding |whethar recorded inowriting or otheradse) that the Company shall
Directly or indirectly lend or imeest in other persons or entitiea identified in any manner what 2o ever By ot on behall of the

Furdfing Party {Witimate Bereficiaries) o provide any guarantes, sscurity ar the ke on behall of the Ultirate Bensficiaries

Thers is no Ingication of @1y Impairment kased on edemalfinternal fectors and hengs np provision for tha Imgairmant ioss had
353 bean reccgrized in terms of Accountng Standards 1E-bmpairment of Azsets, issued by the |nstitute of Chartered Accountants of
Irdia

354 Deheer Matas
Cormesponding previous yeac figures Rave been regrouvped/recast and mechsified, wharswer necessary 0 conform o current
vaar's dlasdificariondseiasurs to make them comparahls

In terms of our report attached. Far and @n behalf of 1he Board of Dirediors
For Dalan snd Co ERD BMOTORS LTD
Cnamered BCoountars
ICA) Firm registration numbar: D003408 Eg/- Sg/-
. G Willeam Varghese Siman Chera G
CHasrnan tanaging Dursciar
g/ (DN DO0TAT 08} [vipi: DOOT4163]
P. Mohandaz, FCA Sdf. Sd/-
Partner IsEwan log Ehap=erathan G
Membership no: $21283 Arcounis bdanager Company Secratary
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B R D MOTORS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR.

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Mambary of BED Miotars Lmnsd
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statement: of BRD Motors Limited (hereinafier referred to a3 the “Holding
Company™) and M sssociate, which compriss the consolidated Balance shesr as @1 31 March 1025, end the comsalideied
sraramant of profit ang loss snd congolidated statement of cash flows for the year then endad, and notes 1o the consalidatsd
finendal statements, including a summary of significant sccounting paficies and other expéznatony information |hersinafter
referred 10 as “rhe comaidarsd Tnancisl sstsmeants™)

Im gur ppinian and i the best of our Information and according ta the explanstans gven To us, except for the effscts of the
matiar described in the Easi for Qualfied Opinior saction of our report, the aforemsid consclidated financial statementz g a
triee and fair view in confarmity with the scoounting principles genera®y scoepted in India, of their consolidsted state of sffain of
tha Company as st March 31, M35, of consolidated profitfloss, and its consofidat=c cash fiows for tha year than ended on that
dlabe_

Basis for Qualifisd Opinion

We draw youar Srention 1o the talicwing maters

I. Mote. 310 of the Corsolidated finandal stetements of the company, Tha company has long-tsrm nwestments n
subgidiaries, szscaates and group entities as st 31 March 2025 snd the company records ity fong-tarm investments ot cost
Chanpes in Busese saviranment could Rave 3 !ﬂ"ﬂ:fﬂﬂ'[ impact on the valuston of thess investmants. A per A5-13
"Accaunting for Investmients” Fara 17 if thare s 3 decling, othar than temparsny, n the value of 3 long term imwEstmant, the
tartying amount iz redoted 19 recognice the decline. The company has Aot carried gut the mpeirment test panodicsdly. We
rave nol besn able 1o corroborate the Managemeant's contention of reREing The Earrying value of s irnvestiments. Azcord mgy,
wa are unabls 1o commaent on the appropristeness of the cirmylng vakue of such investmants and thetr conseguential impact
o the financial resalts and the financisd pasition of the Company ez ot and for the year ended March 31 035

Il Regarding ron svsdiabliity of confirmations in respect of debit and/or oedit balances of Loans, Advances, Deposits, Treds
Payabie, Trade Receivabie and Current Liab#ities. in tha absence of such confirmations, any proddcion to be made for the sadvesse
variation in carrying of emounts of these balsnces, cannot be guantified, as well &3 the guantum af sdjestment if any, reguired 1o
D Mads remEnE unEsceriained.

iil, We drew your senticn o Note 3.04 1o the stcompanying Consolidated financial semtaments regarding Other payabis 1o
Eroup CONCEMM FEl3iaes 10 aarleer years and Interest thereon, which |5 JUis@andsng 35 31 the /eporting tate. Actording 10 the
infgrmation and explarstions given to us, the company har dirconticued ix dealership with Praggio and kas not launched any
trade sctivibies 82 on repacting date. on the badis of the finantial ratisd, Ageing and expected dates of reslization af financial
axsets and paymans of financial lebilpes, omher Information accompanying the Consolidsted Binancal statements, and based
on cur mEmination of the endence of cupporting the ammemptions, we believe that material uncertainty existy as on the dete of
the sudit report that | the Company i nat capable of mesting s Rabilities sxisting ¢ the date of balance shesy 23 and when
thay fall dus within a perod of one year from the balance sheet date.

Thie aixdit raport for the previeus years had alo gualfeed in respect of the matter referred abova.

Wa conducted cur auwdit of the Consolidated financal steteamants in acoordance with Standarde an Auditing (545) spected
umdes wection llﬂ.{‘.l.ﬂ] of the Companies Act, 2013 Our respomibifities under those Standards are further described in the
ApdHors fespansibiinias far the Audit of the Finamcial Statemants sacrion ol our rEpOrL We are independent of 1he Cormpany
im sccordanca with the Code of Ethics issued by the Instituts of Charsred Accountants of india togather with the sihcsl
requinements that are relevant bo owr audit of the financie! statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we
hesve fulfitied gur athar athecal responsibilities |n gcorcence with chese raguiramants and tha ICAMN Code of Trhicy, We beifeva
that the suditsvidencs wa heve obtanad s sufficiant and approgrizte to provids & basts for our quslitied opinkon
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Emphasis of Matter
W draw yalr StESnESn 18 the fallawing matters:

i, Hefer ta Note Wo. 1L1& of the Consclidated financil statements. The company has discontinusd the deafarship with
“Fiaggia” in the yess 2020, Considering stratepic understanding with suppliers customeary, the company i on the revival mode
and, the Company's Soand of Direcors: [the Bosrd’) are sxamining available aptions te further increass safes/imcome fram
cperations. Barring urforassen circumstancas bayond the control of the Company, the Board 5 confidant about the
Company’s sbilty to continue =y @ going concesn. The Compeny haz continuing support from ity grosp concerms and on the
Baziy ol such sudpore businsss pleny of the future B other Sscrore, the finencial starement for the pesr sndeg 31 Mareh 2075
has DSen pregarsd on going conceEmn Dass

il. We draw \your amRenison o Mote 2.20. The Minority Sharaholders haa filed & petition in NCLAT, sgainst fingd verdszt of 1he
Hon'ble MELT which was in faver of the company. The procasdngs of the patition fegd has not fansd on the reporting date
The marnagemant balieves that it in @ strong case on merits and 2z per the current poamion of the case tha lmbdty i any ar@ng
cud of this conTingency canngd b2 determined 3t this sTage and # prasant ag Fdjustment & reguined in e Tinandsd statemant

Key Audit Makters

fay sudit matiers are thoss matters that, in our professional judgmant, wars of mosz significance 7 our swdi of the
Consolidstad fnancial statenerts of the current penod. These metters were sddres=ed in the contaxt of cur audit of the
Consodidsted financial stzrements &5 3 whode, and in forming our opinion thersan, and we do not provide @ separals opinkon on
thase mattars, We hawe determined tha mattars described below to be the key sudh mattars 1o be communicased n our regart:

information Other than the Financial Statements and Apditor's Report Thereon

The Haoiding Lompany’s management snd Board of Directors ara resporsisls for the cthar information. The other infarmation
cormprizes the information included in the Holding Company’s Anrusl Report, but does not include the ficancisl statements and
DUt Budor's report thereon. Tha Hedding Company’s annual raport is expected 1o be made avadabls 1o us alrer the date of this
auditsr's raport

Oiur opinicn an the concofdated himancial statementz doez not cover the other iformetion and we do not express any form of
HlELrRAEE coAClutns [RErean.

in connaction with our asdnr of tha onsoldated fmancial statements, gur respensibility is to read the othar infarmation
identified abawve when it beromes avadlable and, o7 doing 56, condider whether the other information = materially incon=istert
win the consobdated financial rEIemMents oF our KEnowledgs obtaned in e sudie o otherwise appears 10 Be materialy
misstated,

Wihen we read the Haolding Company's annual report, I we conclode that thars 1§ & mBtErial miEstarement therein, we ars
required 1o communicaie the maner to those charged with governancs and take necessany actions, &5 spplicabls uncer the
refevamt izws and regulstion.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Compamy’s Managemant and Board of Directors ars responsible for the praparstion and presentation of thess
conzofideted finandal satements in terms of the reguirements of the Act that give a tros and fair view of the consclidated state
of affzir, copanlidared peofi) loss snd consplidsred canh flows of iRe Group In Accordancs with the ESEOLITLING principles
generally soeptad in Indil, Including the indizn Acccunting Stendards specified under Section 133 of the Ao The respective
Management and Board of Directors of the Companies imduded in the Group are responsiobe for maintenance of adeguats
BCCounting reconds in sccordence with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the ssssts of sach Campeny end for preventing
and detecting fraisds and other irmeguiariies; the selecton and appliceion of approprate ccounting poficias, maiong
judgments and estimates that sre reascnabde and prudent; and the dasign, implemantation and mainteanance of adeguate
imtermal financial controls thal were opersting sffectively far ErAUring he scturaty and complspensss of the BICOWATNE
resords, ralgvant te the preparstion end prasentathon of the mnrsalidated financlal satements that ghee # trug and fair visw
and are fres from materia misststement, whether doe to fraud or amror, which have been used for the purpose of preparstion
of the coroldated financis sistaments by the Management and Board of Directors af the Holding Company, &3 aforscaid
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In praparing the consolidated financial statements, the respectrve Management and Boand of Direciors of the companias
included in the Groog ane responzible for ssaesing the ability of sach Company to continde as & gaing concem, didciasing, »s
applicakie. matmen reiaied 1o Oing concern and using The going concern Basis of acocounting uniess the respeciive Baard of
Diirgcinss sithar ntends o lguidets the Company or (o ceaEe cpeRTOnE, or fas no restirtc sitemative bot to do so

The respective Bossd of Directors of the Companies inciudad in the Group are respansdis far grersesing the financial reposting
prooess of @ach Company

Aurditor's Responsililities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finondal Stotements

Dt objectives ane 1o ablasn neassnable assyrmnce about whether the consolidated financial statements &3 & whale are free
from material misstatement, whether gus o frawd or srror, @nd 1o Issue @0 suditors’ repart that ingludes our apinlgn
feasonable assurance i a high lovael of assurance, but is not 3 guarantes that an sudit conducted in accordance with Shs will
miweys detect = materisl mizstatement when it exats. Misstatements con arise from Fravd or error and sre considesed matarial
If, indwidugily or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 10 Influsnce the econome decislons of users mken on
tha basis of thess tonsolidatad fnancial satamants.

Az part of ar audit in sccordance with SAs, we exerciae professisnal judgment and maintsn professonal skeptidsm throughout
the gudie. We sl

= dantify and Issess the rsks of material mistatameant of the consolidated financiad stetemants, whather dug to fraud or
errof, design and perform sudit procedeires rezponshie to thoae rizks, and obtsin sudit svidence that iz suffcient and
IpproprEle 1o provice 3 begis for pur opinion. The risk of not detecting & materia misctaement resulting from fraud is faghas
than for ocne resoiting from efror, a5 fraud may invoéve collusicn, forgeny, intentionad omiEsions, misrepresantations, or the
cverride of internal comtrol

& Obtair an underscanding el internal ConErol reevant e The autit in order 10 dasign aedil procedunes (RET are appropriate in
tha circumetances. Undar Saction 1A3(3N 1) of the Act, we ars aiea responsible for sxpressing our opinign on thea internal fingncizd
cortroly with reference to the consolidated financial stetements and the operating effectiveness of such controb,

= Evgluats the appropriateness of accounting podicas ussd andd the reasonabiensss of sccounting estimates and ralsted
desciosunes made by Managament and Board of Directorz

= Concluds on the aparopristensss of Mensgement and Board of Direceors ase of tha going concern basis of sccounting in
pragaration of consoldarad financial statements and, besed on the audl svidencs abtained, whnather @ material uncarzingy
paizts reisted to events or conditions that may cast signiticant doait on the apprognateaness of this assomption. i we conclude
that 8 materbs] yncettsinty exists, we ate required to draw stiention in oor auditos’s pepart 1o the reisted distlosurss in the
conseidated fingncial szatemeants or, IF such discosures are inadequans, o moddly sur galmion Dur contfusions are based on the
audit evidance chizined up 1o tha date of cor auditor's repart. Howeear, future events or conditions may camsa e Group 1o
CE=tg to contiree 253 gaing Cancermn.

« Baluate the sversl pressnistion siructurs 3nd content of tha corsolidated financial starsmants, including the disclomirss,
and whathar tha conzoidated finarcial statements reprecant the undarlying tranmactions and event: in 3 mannar that achisves
fair preserkation

»  Jbtzin sufficient appropriste audit avidencs regarding the firancal information of entites within the Group to sxpress an
opanicn on the cordofidated finzncsl :tatements. We are respordible for the ditection, superviion and performance of the
audir of financlal infermaton of siEch entites ingluded Im Tne consolidsted fagncial statemenm We remaln solely responsinle
for gur sudit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and tuch other Companies included &= the
consplidated financial stmements of which w2 are The isdepandent auditars regarding, Meng other mamers, ke plannag
stope 3nd timing of the sudit snd significant audit findings, inciuding sy significant deficiencies in Interngl control that we
identify during our audit

W alio provids 1hoss chargsd with governancs with 3 matamant that we have compled with reégvent sihlca reguiremants
regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationshipe and other matters that may reasonably be thooght to
b=ar 30 our independence, and whesrs agplicabie, reisted safeguards.

From the maners communiceed with Those cherged with EOVEmance, we ofisrmine those mattsrs that were of mos
significance in the audit of the consofidated financal statements of the current period and are therefore the ey sudit matters
W'e deseribe thess mAttery in ourl awditosy’ repart unless |aw ar regulation preciudes poblic disciosurs Aboul [he MaMEor when,
im EcrEmEly AR CIMUMEENCEL, 'We detsrming that @ maner showld not o8 communicted in our repoTt DECAUEE The SCVETSE
consegquences-of doing 5o would reascnably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commuoncation.
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Other Makter

The fonsaidazed financisl sratements sles ntlods the Group’s shese of net loss of fe 2627 Lekhs for the year endad 31st
farch 2015, a5 considersd In the consobdated financial matements, in respect of socEies, whose financial marements /
finandal information have not been audtted by us The share of profit of the sssocate company iz as par the prositonst figumes
prorvided By the management. Dur opinian an the conzolidated finencial stataments, |n 5o far 2y it reletes to the amounts and
dsciosuTas incladed in respect of thess subsidianes and sssoCiEies, @nd our regon 0 terms of sub-section {2janci 18] of saction
143 of the act, in so far az it relates to the sforesaid subsidiaries and sssociates, is based scleby on the reports of the other
suditars

Cwr ppinian above on the Corsolidated Financial Smtements. and owr repart on Other Legal and Ragudiatory Aeqguiremants
tsalow, i@ not modifed in respect of the above matters with respect o our raliance on the work done and tha reports of the
pther auditors and the fnantal statements [ financial information certified by Mansgement.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
s requirad by Section 14330 of the A, Dased on our audit, we repart, B2 the extent applicable, that;

8] W= nave sgugm and obtaired all the nformation and explarations which 1o the best of our bnowiedgs and balisl ware
necessary for tha purposes of our audit of the sforesaid comsalidatsd finandal Setamants

Bl  Im @or apinias, pragss books of scoount & reguired by lew relatag 1o preparstion of the sforeseid eonsalitsted finsncial
stztements hawe been kagt o far a5 it sppesrs from our examination of inose books

i The concolicetsd Daiance sheel The mnsofidated starement of profit and loss and the consolidsted statement af cash

flows dealt with by this Repert are in agreemant with tha relevant beoks of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the conzolidsted finarcal rtate ments

i in pwr opinion, the aforezaid consoligated financal satements comply with the Accounting Standands specifiad undar
Section 133 of tha Act. Except As.15 Emvployes Seredit “Refer to Mote a0 T 160 of the financisl statement

g Of the basi of the wetten representations fecsived fram the directars of the Holding Compeny B2 on 31 Mach 2025
tale=n on record by the Bosro of Diractors of the Holding Company and on the Dash of wraten regresentations recelved by the
managemant from direciors of ity rebsidiaties which are incorporated in india, 23 on 31 March 2025, none of the deectors of
Lhe Grous companies incorperated in Indee o disguelified as on 31 Mesch 2025 Mrom baing sopointed & 8 dirsctar in terme of
Secrion 134(2) of the Act,

fl  ‘Witn respact to the sdeguacy of the interne! financis) control with reference 1o consolidated financial ststemants of the
Halding Company and the oparating effeivanass of such contrals, refer to gur separate report In “Annsours |

gl  With respset to the pther matters i be included In the Auditors’ Repart in secordance with Auls 11 of the Companies
iAuder gnd Aadior'st Qulss, 3014, 38 amended, n our cpimion and 1o the best of owr information and accorging @ the
pxplanations given tou:

3] Tne consalidzted financial suaements dischose the impact of peading litigstions 35 30 31 March 2025 on e consalidated
financial pasition of the Eroup, Refar 3.39 1o the consolidated Sinancial sratemants

Bf Tha Compary and 5 sssociates’ emtbties &4 not hawe aay matenial foreseeahls lodses on long-tarm contrects imtluding
derwative contracts during the yaar anded 311 March 202C.

cl Thers has bepn no delny in transfering amount, reguoired to be trensfecred 1o the |nvestor Education and Protection Fund
by e Holding Comipany, and associale companias incorporatad in india,

The maragement has represanted that, to the bast of its knowiadge and betigf, no funds haws been advanced or losnad o

invested {=ither from borrowed fund: or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds] by the Holding Company or itz

subsidiary companies incorporated 0 Indle 1o o In =5y other parsons or entitizs including farsign entitles (“Intemediaries™|,

with tha undersianding, whather recorded in writing or othanslss, that the Intermediary shall:

Directly or inditectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identifed in any manner whatsoever [“Uiimate Beneficaries"}

by of on bahal of the Halding Company or it subsidiary companies incarporated in India or provide any guerantee, security o0

ha like fo or on behaf of the Uimate Beraficlanss {Aefer Nots 3 45 w rhe financial saEments];

The manag=ment has represented, tHaL to the best of it knowledge and befief, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company or iz subsidiary compances ingorporatad in India from @ny pecsons or entiees, including forsign sntities [“Funding
Parties”|, with the understanding, whether recordad in writing or otharwiza, that the Holding Company or itz subsidiary
Eormaanmas intorporaied in Indis shall:
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Directly arindiractly, iend or invest in other persons or antitias idantfiad in any mannar whatsoaver [“Uitimats Beneficariss™)
by aor on behall of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantes, security or the like from or on behe of the Ukimats
Bemeficiaries (Rafer Mot 3 .48 1o the finapcal starements),

Baxed on such audit procedures a3 considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
ROTicE thE Bas caussd us 1o beliews that the representatians under sub clause (dii) end (d)i) conmmin any mesrial mis-
iEiement.

Halding Company snd fts sssacistes which as= Incorporatsd in Indis hed mot daclsrsd or paid sny dhvidend during the yesr In
conrsvention of The prevkions of sectipn 123 of the Companies Act, 2013

Wilith respect to tha matisr to be incleded in the Auditars’ repaet under Section 197(16] of the Ao

in owr opinion and amording ba the information snd explenation gheen 1o Uz, the remunerataon gaid during the cerrent pear by
the Halding Comparny and it sssacates which ars intorporated in Indis 10 ¥ dirsceard 14 in accardance «1 the provigans ol
Section 197 of the Act, The remuneration paid to any dirgctor by the Holding Company and 15 aseaciatss which arg incarporaied
im India, iv not in exoess of the limit fad down undar Section 197 of tha Act. Tha Ministry of Corporate Afaics haa mot preccrioed
pthar detsils under S=ction 197{1E] of the Act which sre reguired to be commented woan by .

With respect to the matters specitied i dause i) of peragraph 3 and peagraph 4 of the Companies [Auditor's Report) Ordar,
2020 [“CARD®Y “the Order®) wswed by the Central Government in terma of Saction 143{11) of the Act, sccording to the
Irfarmation and expianations gven 10 us, and Dased on the CARD repoms issusd by us #nd the auditors of respective companias
included in the Consalidated Financial Statemants to which reporting wnder CARD 5 spplicabls, =5 provided to ue by the
Management of the Parent, we report that there are qualification remariz by the respective auditors in the CAROD reportz of
BRD motors Lod Sandalons Saatemants

For Balan £ Co.,
Chartered ACToaINIERTS
ICAl Brmn regestranan nyrnger; Q003805

§d
P_Mohandas FLA
Fartnee (M Ne.0Z1262
Place: Aluva LDIN: 25021 262BMHEZQRIG0]
Date: 300820223
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Annexure | to the independent Auditors’ Report on the consolidated financial statements of BRD Motors Limited
fior the year ended 31 March 2025

[ Referred tain paragragh |fj under ‘Repart on Other Legal and Regulatony Regquirements” section of our report of even date)
Repoct on the internal fNnancial contraly with referencs 1o the aforesaid consolidsted Bnanciedl starements under Clause [} af
Sub- secvon 3 of Sactipn 143 of the Companies Act, 2003

Im conjenction with our apdit of tha consolidated fnancial stetemants of BED Motors Limited (herematter referred to as “the
Hotdlmg Compary® ) as of ard for the year anded 31 Mareh 2025, we have sudii=d the internasl finsncial contrel with reference
to the ronsolidated financla! ststements of the Holding Company and such companias incorporated in India under the
Companies Act, 2013 which are its asiociate companies, as of thet date.

Management's Responsibility for intemsal Financial Controls

The respective Comgany's mapagement 2nd the Boand of Directors are responsibie for esteblishing and maintsining intermal
finandal controfy with reference to consolideted financial statements based on the criteris entabimhed by the respective
Compary congkdering the essential companents of Inismal contral sraced in the Guidance Note Thess responiibllities incuds
the design, implementation and meintenance of sdeguete intarnsl inancisl controds that were operating =ifectively for ersuring
tha ordesly and efiicient condust of (15 Durnass, including sdnsranca 1o Tha reFpecTive Company s policiss, the safeguarting of
It mysets, e prevention snd detsetion of frauds snd errors, the stouracy ard complerensss of the sceounting recosds, and 1he
timaly pregaration of refizgizs financiz! mfcrmiatioe, a5 reqguited undsr the Companias Ao, 3013 {hereinafter referred toas “the
Ta

Auditors’ Respomsibifity

D responsibility is to exprass an opirion on the internal financial controls with reference o consciidated financal ratemants
bxsed on gur sudit. We conducted our sudit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prewcsbed
wnder sarpon 143{10) of the Ao o the =a=nt aoplicabies 10 & audit of meemal financlal ontrols with reference to
consolidstad financial statsments. Those Standards and the Guidance Koie require that we comply with sthical raquiremants
arid plan mnd perform the sodit to obtain reszonable mssurance sbhowt whether sdeguste internal Grande! cantrols with
reference 1o consohidated financial SEstemeants wers sspablahed and meintainsg and I such comrols operated sffeoivery inall
maAtarial rgspatis

Dt sudit Involves perfarming grocedoras to oblaln sudit sedents sbaut the adequacy of the intsmal financlal controls with
reference 1o conspdidated financis statameants and thelr opersting slfectiveness. Our sudit of Intsrnal financizl camtrols with
refersnce to conzclidated fimancal statements ocluded obmining an understanding of internal financial comtrols witk
referance 1o consalidated financisl slsgsments, sussssing the risk thet s matedsl wepknsss syjsts snd teating and svalusting
tha design ard oparating effectivenass of the Imternal contrals based on the assessad rek The procedures sslected depend on
tha auditor's judgement, incleding the assessment of tha risks of materiai mEstatemsnt of the consofdated financal
stapements, whether dus 1o frand or esrar. We beFevs that the sudit evidence we haws obained is sufficient and approgriate
iz prownds 3 basts for our audit opinion on the internal finencsl contrals with referencs 1o conscildsted financs! Fetemeants

Meaning of Internal Finandal Controbs with reference to Consofideted Financial Statements

A company s msernal fimancial controde with referanca to consolidated fimancil statements % & procyss designec fo prowids
reasamanls sysucance regarding the relisbilny of financigl reparting snd the preparstion of corsplidated fingnpiasl netements
for extarnal purpeses in atcordance with genersily accepted actounting principies. A company's intemal financal controds with
reference 1o conspdidated financead snatements inciudes those polices and procederes that (1) pertain to the manenance of
recorde that, in reesonable detsil, sccurately and fairly reflect the transactons and dapositions of the asety of the company;
[} provida reasonable sEsUTanos That transactions &8 recoidad 35 neceseary 1o permit prepararion of consohdated financsd
rtwtements @ accord anoe with generally sccepted accounting principles, and thet recespis and expenditures of the company are
tsing made only In sooordence with autharsatans of management and diregors of the company; 304 (3} provide reasonable
Esaurance regarding prevention or timefy detectian of unsuthorised acousition, use, or dispodition of the campany’s asssts
that could have 3 maietial #ffen o0 the consalidstse financal statsmeants

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controds with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Becausa of the Inkarent limastions of intemal finanoal conmoks with reference to consolidatsd financial sratements, inciuding
tha possibifity of collumion or improper management override of controly, materisl mastaternerts doe o emor or fraod may
perur and mol be detssted. Als, projections of amy svalostion of the intermal Gnancle contral with reference o
consalidsted financial
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statements 1o future pericds &re subje io the figk that the intemal fimencial conrols with reference
consobdated financial statemants may beoma inadeguats because of changes in conditions, or that the degres
of complianes with the palicies or procedores may dateciarste.

Opinion

Im owr cpinion, the Holding (ompany and such companied incorporatec in india which are ity subgidiary
epenganaes, heve, In all materal reaspects, adequate interna! Anancial coateols with refersnce 1o coraofidated
financal riztemants and such internal fenancal contrals wera operating effectrealy as at 31 March 2025, based
oh the jmiernal financsl contrals with reference 1o consalideted finzncisl s1atemants orieris established by
FUCH comipen s condening the esential companents of such intarmal controds statsd in the Guidance Naote on
Aud of Intermal Financial Controts COver Finagncizl Reporting issasd by the mstiiue of Charered ACCoumEnis
of India [the “Guidance Mote”].

For Halen & Ta,
ChaTsreddccoentants
ICALFirm regstratiornumbes 00034

B
P Mohandas FCA
Partras (M NS DZ1ZE2)
Place: Alwa VDD 23021 2628MHIQR 602
Date: 300082025
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BRD MOTORS LTD
[AE amounts in T 000, unless atherwise stated)

Consolidaied Balance Sheetdtatement As A1 3151 March, 2035

Asal Az at
Particulars WS prarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| EQUITY BND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ fumids
(2] Shara capitsl 301 24390849 243 S0E 45
ib) Resgryes and surplus 303 [16.477.45] 11504.75
(c) Money received against share warmants
1 Share applicatbon money pending alotment =
3 Mon-current lizbilities
(&) mmrm hn{minﬁ; A4.04 146770591 07, 70591
(b) Deferred tax Uabifities [Nat] 304 = >
(] Osher Long torm liskelites 205 EF 574 89 27574 9
i(df Leng-term provisions 306 559334958 .
4 Current liabilitkes
(2] Short-term borrowings 07 1,352 73
(b} Trade payabist 308 189.56 .
(c)] Other current labilities 1.0% 96920 B4 ES
(d} Short-term reovisions 310 = .
Taral TEISOE TS IS O63.60
Il ASSETS
1 Mon-current assets
{2} Property, Flant and Equipment and Intangible a35a1s
(i) Broperty, Plant and Equiprent 111 52 640 94 51,782.53
[ii] Intangils assets : .
(1) Capital wark-Inprograds i =
(] Intamgible assers under development - -
(b} Mor-ourrent investments 312 385074 132 44678
(o] Dofarred tas st (Rat) 313 0,428 70 132530
(di Long-term koans and advances 314 2124932 2134 3%
(&} Othef RoM-CurTant astets 315 2.729.39 272935
1 Current assets
(2] Current investments ile - .
(b} Imantorias 3.17 -
(c] Trade receidakles R - -
id} Cash and cash sgunvalents 319 154 04 445149
(&} Short-term loans and sdeances 3.0 11.238.21 10063 48
() Other current assets in 18191 137 60
Total — THASEEYS T A50063.60
Summmany ﬂfﬁﬂ.ﬁliﬁﬁ'li accaunting poficies F)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
I termes of our report attached. For and o behall of the Board of erectors
For Balan and Co HRD MOTORS LTD
Chartenad Aocoumntants
BCA Firm fegistration nsmbes: 0003405 sd/- Sdy-
C. C. Willliam Varghese Simon Cheru L
Chairman Maragrig Director
Sdj- | Db D007 & o) [ Diibd- 074 103]
F. Mohandas, FCA S 5/~
Partrer Jeevan Joy Bhapeerathan G
Membarship no: 021263 Accounis Managar Company Secretany
Placg - Aluva Place - Thrcour
Dats - 30.08.2025 Date - 30.08.2025
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BRD MOTORS LTD
(AR amounts in % ,'D00, unless otherwtse stated)

Consofidated Profit and koss Statement As AT 3152 March, 2025

- Year ended Year ended
Particulers NOEES  pparch 31, 2005 March 31, 2024
I Revenue from operations 3R - -
Il Cahar incomme 313 476725 315460
il Total Income(] + 11 L1615 1L,15460
i  Expenses
Cost of matensls corsumed 324 ' -
Purchases of Stodc-in-Trade g - =
Changas in invantones of Fnlkhed oo WP and Stock-in- Trads 3.4 = =
Employes benefits exparse W) B30 7
Fimanee Crat 1M - 441 4%
Depraciation and amortization expense 1M 216 54 3,856 54
Cther expenses 330 E3.64085 &5530
Total expenses b ATHE LW LW
W Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tzx (11-IV) {59,780.73) (2:561.15)
W1 Exceptional Ilems = =
VIl Frofi beforg extracr@nany iterrs and tax -] 159, T80 73] [L56LI5]
Wil Extraordinany ltems
X Profit before ta (V- VIIT) {59, 7BUT3] 1256179}
N Tax expense. 33
- Current tax -
= ShostExcess) provision of tex relating to esrlier years - -
- Deferred tax charge/ (benefin) [29.116.40} =
Income tax aupense 139,216, 40} -
¥ Profit {Loss) for the period from continuing operations (35637 {L56110]
M Profiy/{kess) from discontinuing oparations = =
M| Tay exipiras of dscontinuing aperations Z z
M Profit){loss) from Discontimuwing operabons |after ta) - -
Profit {Loss) (X0 -+ I¥) 130,564,371 TESELIST
Share of Profitfiloss) of Assodate [Het} 162711 19,972,82
Profif {Loss] X+ X0 [27.5937.21) IT41163
Enaninegs Per Equity Share [ Basic and Diuted ) 332 (L25) {0.11)
[Morninat valua of shares fis. 10 goch]
Wrighted sverage pquety shares usad in Computing sarnings per eguity sharo
EBasic and Diluted 243 90 545 2.43.90, 548
Surmmary of significant accounting palices 2
The sCompsnyng notes afe iTIII‘H.EETEi part of the financizl stalemants
In terms of our report attached, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Balan and Co BRD MOTORS LTD
Chartgred Accountants
BCAl Firmn registration numbers 0003405 G- 4
L. C. Wiliam Varghess Simon Chetu C,
Chalrman Managing Directar
S [DIN:D00T4708) (DN 00074153
P. Mohandas. FCA Sd/- Sdf-
Fartrar leevan loy Bhageerathan &
Memberhip no: G217EF Hocounts Manager Company SeLrEEly
Place : Alava Place : Thrissur
Date: 30 082025 Date - 3008 31025
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BRD MOTORS LTD
(AlF amourts in %000, unless otherwiad statad)

Consoldated Cash Flow Statement As At 315t March, 2025

: Year anded March 31.
Particulars 035 7024
Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
{Loss]f Profit befare 1an {59, 7E0.TY) [2561.19)
Adpustments = reconeie [ioss)profi belere @x 1e nel c2sh Nows
Depraciztion and amort sation sxpanss 11654 415554
Finance Costs - 441 43
(Prefit]/Lods om salefwrine off of progerty, plant and equipmen: [net) ~ .
interest Income [5.00] [2.70)
Operating Profit before Working Capltal Changes E
A djustrments for (increase)fdecrease in operating assets:
Trads Rageivabias .
Logns and Addvances (L1r4.73) 319300
Tds Rafund a53 01
Oaher Current and Non-Current Azsets {54.31) 1141
inesntosies spd Right of return sssen =
Adjustmants for increass/[decrsase] in operating llabibities:
Thort tmrm Bomowings 1,342 748 1234470
Trade Payables 18556
Other current, pon-current @nd refund llablinles TO4.55 9145
Changes in Working Capital 1.954.86 15, /40,56
Cash Gansrated from Opsrstiong (57.609.32) 1777464
income Tax Paid (5201 307 ad)
Het Cash From Operating Activities [58.561.33] 17,467,232
Cash Fiow From Investingactinties :
Purchase of PPE Inciuding intangibia, Cagiral WIP 2nd Capas advances (LO7356) 1701500
Procesds from s3ls of property, plart 3nd equipmant T
Corstruction-Capitad WIF -
Inperesy Becsived 500 270
5dl= of 5hares gnd Mutual Funds -
Frovisign on investmant 58334 54
InrestimEns i mutesd fonds snd shanes -
et Cash From Imvesting Acivities 8. 266,02 (17.016.30)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
rocesdsfirepsyments) from ong-term bosrawings {net] -
interott Faid 441.43)
Dividend paid - 2
et cash Mows used in financing activities i {44143}
Mat [decraase]fincreass in cash and cash pquivalents [295.31) 549
Cash ang cash egaivedents at the beginning of tha year dile 3% 412 o0
Cash and cash equivalents st year end [ Note Mo 3.19 | 15808 I
Thn AcTompRnying notes are an tegrad part of the financial satements,
I tesms of aur report sttached. Far and on bakalf of the Board of Dirsctars
For Batan and Lo BREO MOTORS LTD
Chartered Ascauntants L) Sdf-
ICAI Firm registration nemibar 0002405 €. L. William Varghezo Limon Chere O,
Chaimman Managing Diractor
{0007 4708] {DIN: BIO741E3)
S & [ T
P. Mohandas, FCA Iewvan oy Bhageerathan G
Partnar Accounts Manager Compeny Secretary
Membershig no: 021262
Blacs | Aluva Place - Al
Ut 300 LS Date : 30.08.2015
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MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

l. Company Overview

B RD!&!&DHL@M (‘the company’) is a public limited company incorporated in
year 1

L Significant accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statemenis

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles [GAAPF) mnder the historical cost comvention on the accrual basis,
GAAP comprises mandatory asccounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013 [the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companiss {Accounts] Rules,
2014, the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). Accounting policies have been
congistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is imitfally

adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
acoounting policy hitherto in use.

Pursuant to amendment to the Schedule [T of the Companles Act, 2013 issusd by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs: following Balance Sheet line tems In the previous year have
been rnag:r-l:u\l;nail

a. Security deposits - Earlier disclosed under the head of "Long Term Loans and
Advances” are /n under 'Other Non-Current Azsets”

b. Current portion of long-term borrowings if any — earfler disclosed under the head of
‘Current Liabilities’ s shown under "Short Term Borrowings'

2.2 Principies of consofidation

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies uged in the consolidation are drawn
up to the same reporting date as of the Company.

The consolidated finandal statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been
combined on a line-by-line basls by adding tu-g:lh:r like [tems of assets, Habilities. income
and expenses. Int& -company balances and tranzactions and unrealissd profits or losses
have been fully eliminated. Share of net profit from assoclate company has been Includsad
on the bagis of provizsional figures provided by the management.

The share of profit / loss of 22s0ciate companies iz accounted under the "Equity method” as
per which the share of profit / loss of the associate company has heen adjusted to the cost
of investment. An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence
and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The excess of the msttuﬂmparmt-nfrtsimmhnmhh:imhﬁldur}' nwrﬂ:mpa.rml:i
pnrl:!un of equlty at the date on which Investment |n the subsidiary is made, is recognised

'Goodwlll [on consolidation). When the cost to the parent of its investment In a
suhm‘.i.:.r:.r i5 lesz than the parent’s portion of equity of the mbddmy:tth&dﬂe on which

investment in the subsidiary is made, the difference i treated as ‘Capital Reserve (on
consolidation)' in the conzolidated financial statements.

i1 Minority [nterest in the net asssts of consolidatsd subsidiaries consists of the amount of

equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on which Investments In the
subsidiary companies are made and further movements In their share In the equity,
subsequent to the dates of investments.
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MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

i} On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on dispasal.

1.3 use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of

aszets and liabilitles and disclosures relating to contingent Babllitles as at the date of the

financial statements and reporfed amounts of income and expenses during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ

from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management
humm:sawmnfrhﬂwinﬁmd:tum:hma surrdunding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and |f material, thelr effects are discdosed in the not=s to the Anancial statements

Current / Non-Current Classification
Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditicns:

l the aas_utfllagilit}r is mxpected to be reabized; ssttied in the Company’s normal
aperating cycle;

i the asset/Mability 5 expected to be realized/ settled within twelve months
after the reporting period

iil.  the asset 13 cash or cash equivalent unless it iz restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a Hability for at least twelve months after the reparting date;

iw. In the case of a liability, the Company does not have an anconditional right to
defer sottlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and lsbilites are classifed as non-current assets and labilities

For the purpese of current/non-current classification of assets and labilities, the
Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on
the nature of services and the time between g]ﬂ uisition of assets or inventories for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents.

24 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer.

Income from services is recognized on completion of rendering of services.

Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis determined by the amount

outstanding and the rate applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability
or coflectability exists.

Dividend Income from investments [5 recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established and when no significant uncertainty az to mgsmi:iﬂt}rnr collectability eodsts.



Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.5 Property, Plant & equipment's

Hems of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and aceumulated impafrment losges, if any. The cost of an item of property. plant and
equipment comprizes the cost of materisls and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the item to working condition for it intended use. and astimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property. plant and eguipment is recognlsed in
statement of profit and loss. Subsequent expenditure [s capitalized only If it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company, Losses arising from the retlrement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of
tangible assets which are carried at costare recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Lo intangible assets

Intangible a3sets scquired separately are measured on Inital recognition at cost. Following
imitial recognition. intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated Impalrment losses, If any. Intangible assets are amortized on 4 straight line basls
over the estimated useful economic life

1.7 Depreciation and amartization

Deprecistion on Fixed Aszsetzis provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written
down Value [WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the ascets ag
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act. 2013. In respect of additions or extensions
forming an integral part of existing assets, depreciation is provided as aforesaid over the
regidual life of the respective assets.

* Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis Le. from (up to) the
date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Intangible Assets are amortised on 3 Straight-Line basis over the estimated useful economiclife
Computer Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is classified as an
intansible asset; and amortised over a period of five years, being its estimated useful life,

2B Invenlories
The Entity has discontinued itsopsration and not carrying any [nventories

on the Balance Sheet Date.
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MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.9 Impatrment

The management periodically asseszes. using external and Internal sources. whether there [z an
Indication that an asset may be impalred. An impairment loss Is recognized wherever the carrying
value of an aszet axceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's
net selling price and value in use which means the present value of future cash flows expected to
artse from the continuing use of the aseat and it eventful disposal An impairment loss for an
asget {s reversed if and only if the reversal can bed related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losz was recognized The carrying amount of an azsset iz increased to itz
revizsed recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
1.10 Employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months
of rendering the service are classified as short-term emploves bensflts and they are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company
recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee bensfits expected to be
paid in exchangs for services rendered as a Hability (accrued axpense)

Dther long term employves benefits: Entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are

recognized when they accrue to employees, Sick leave can only be availed while annual leave
can either be availed or encased subject to a restriction on the maximum number of

accumulations of leave.
a, Gratuity

As on thers are no employees who are eatitled for gratuity and the excess provizion of
gratulty in the books are written back.

b. Provident Fund

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a
defined contribution plan, Both the eligible employees and the Company make monthly
contributions to the Government sdministersd provident fund scheme equal to a
specified percentage of the eligible emplovee’s zalary, Amounts collected under the

provident fund plan are deposited with in 2 government administered provident fund.

The Company has no further obligation to the plan bevond its monthly contributions.



MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.11 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of andllary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs. if any. directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of
an gaset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

L12 Income taxes

The company has carried deferred tax assets recognized on depreciation in an earlier year

but during the year we have provided deferred tax asset provision which (s based on the
likelihood of future taxable Incoms,

2.13 Eamings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted eamings per share in accordance with AS 20,
Earnings per Share, as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, Basle
earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted
average number of squity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per share
reflect the potential dilution that could eccur if securities or other contracts to issue equity
shares were exercised or converted during the yvear, Diluted sarnings per share are
computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential
equity shares outstanding at the year end.

2.14 Discontinuing Operations

The company has discontinued the dealership with "Piaggio" in the vear 2020.
Considering strategic understanding with suppliers) customers. the company is on the
revival mede and, the Company's Board of Directors (the Beard”) are examining avallable
optiong to further [ncrease szales/income from operations. Barring unforeseen
circumstances beyond the contral of the Company, the Board is confident about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Company haz continning
support from its group concerns and on the basis of such support, business plans of the
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MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

future & other factors, the financial statement for the year ended 31 Mardh 2025 has been
prepared on going concern basts,

2115 Segment Reporting

The Company has discontinued its operations; hence there is no separate reportable
buslness or geographlcal segments a5 per AS- 17 "Segment Reporting”™.

Z16Cash & equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks and corporations.

The Company conziders all highly Hguid investments with a remaining maturity at the
date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

117 Cash Flow Statement

Cazh flows are reported using the Indirect method, whereby profit [/ (loss) before
extraordinary tems and tax iz adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accroals of past or firture cash receipts or payments, The cash flows

from operating investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based
on the available information. Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash eguivalents are short-term balances [with an origimal maturity of thres
months or less from the date of acguisition], highly liquid Investments that are readily
convertible into kmown amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value.
L1E Lease

Where the company is lesses

All the leasing arrangements of the Company are operating leaze [n respect of itz office
premises where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of

ownership of the leased asset. Such operating lease rental payments are recognized as an
expenss on accrusl basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Where the company [z the lessor

Azzets subject to operating lease are Included In the fixed assets. Lease Income on
operating lease 15 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Costs, including
depreciation, are recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.15 Exceptional ltem
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

When items of income and expense within statement of prafit and
loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence
that their disclosure is refevant to explain the performance of
the enterprise for the period. the nature and amount of such
material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

2.20 NCLT Proceedings against the Petition filed by the
Minority Share Holders of the Company

The Minority Shareholders has filed a petition in NCLAT,
against final verdict of the Hon'ble NCLT which was in favor of
the company. The management belisves that it is 2 strong case on
merits and as per the current position of the case the labdlity if
any arising out of this contingency cannot be determined at this
stage and at present no adjustment is required in the financal
statements. As per the information from Hon'ble NCALT
minority Share Holders has filed a petition against the favorable
order of Hon'ble NCLT. Refer Note 2.22. Company has filed
affidavit and the matter is under progress.

2.21 Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as
a result of a past event it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and there is & reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to
its present value. These ars reviewed at each year end date and
adjusted to reflect the best current estimate.

Contingent liahilities are disclosed when there is a possible
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

obligation arising from past events. the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the ocourrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be
reqguired to settle the oblization or a reliable estimate of the

amount cannot be made.
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Botes on Fnancial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
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il Ealances at the yaar end:
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3137 Additions| lttl.i.ll.l'm[ Information

Particulars Mumergtor Denamingtne 31033075 3103.0024 % of vanseqe®
Current Ratia (Emes) Current Asset Current iabilsting 459 4071 -BE 49%
Debr-Equity Ratio (rimas) Tianad deng Shisreholders Squity 0,28 042 13,654
I:l.ﬂ: Service Coverags Ratin Eifr'fﬂﬁ avaizhes for debs Pebt service A (440) WA
[Himas] TArviCE
Mt Profit Ratio (%) Met Profits Net Sales MA WA A
Astuwrn on Equiey Ratia (M) Met profits altes maess Averape sharehoider's -12 5E% -1.18% 973 BN
Aaturn on Capital gr a E nefore merest 200

b ki e o i Capital employed A784% 058K 295521
&) taxas
Trade Aeceivables tumoves

Tatsl sale=y Clasing trads =211 LY M

g I a sing receiys WA A ML
. N Gl Average mventany Nk WA N
|times]|
:::; . : Ta Tatal Purchass Closing trafe payalis - MA BLA

NetT Capta! Turnoves rann

: Mgk Safex Ayerage working capital A . ML,
||

33z ™ the opinizn of the management . e curment sssets, ioans and advences shall realss the vadug 5 shawn in tha belancs shest,
reafized in the narmal coore of BuTnpes.

2.39 (ther notes mx raguired by Schedule |li of the Act are either nil or not applcable hance not disclosed.

The company kas a single reporiable segment e financing which has similar risk & fetum for the punpose of AS=17 on Segment
3.40 Reporting’ notifed under the Companiss Aooourting Siamdard) fules, 1006 as amenbded The compary operates in 3 sinmgis
gocgraphical sagmaent e, domastic

Additional Regidatory mfermation as per MCA notificatan
341 The Company dossr't heve any immovable Propesty whoze tiths deeds are not hald in the name of the Company.

The compeny doen't hold =sny bensmi groperty under the Banami Transactiona [Prohihitian) Act, 1988 {45 of 1088} and rulss mads
thergunder znd no procasdirgs nave heen inltzted or pending against e company far 1he same

ifa

343 Tne Company has not révaleed s Propamy, Fan and Equiamen during te linancial year 14-15
3.2 The Company has not revaived o5 iInangicla amess during the financial wear J4-15

The Compamy Nas not been dedlared @5 2 withal defaaltar oy any lender who has powars to declars & compary 35 3 withel defauster
345 gt any tme during the financial year or after the end of reporting periad but before the dote when finandal staternents ane
amoroved
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346 The company dogn’t heve any transaciions with companies siruck off undar secoon 248 of the Companies Act, 3013 or secrion
580 of Companiss Act 1955

The Compemy does not hawve any transsctan which iz not reconded in the bookr of sccownt= but has been srmendered or disclomed
347 meimcome during the y2ar in the 183 grsessments undsas the income Tax Act 1961[such a8, search or sufesy ar any other relevant
provizions of the incoma Tax Act, 1861)

The Company has not grven any loens or advances in the neture of loars to promaoters, dinectors, EMPr and the related parties |23
348 defined under Compamiss Act, 2013} sither sevesaily or joinaly with 2ny olber pearson 1h3t g 2] repayablz on damand:; of b

without specifying any terms or pariod of repaymant

140 Tha Compary does not kave sy charges or satisfaction which &yt o be registered with tha Hegistrar of Companies {ROC]
hepand the siatatery erlod

3 50 Company has not braded/irvestad in crypto currency of virtual cisrrency foe the correnat inancial pear and previous pess

381 Tne Company hasn't advencad or imansd or invested furds to any other persorish or antmplies], moluding forslgn entities
|intermediaries ] with the undemstanding that the Intermadiary shall:
Diractly or indirectly lend or imvest in octher perzons or ertitisa identified in &0y mannad whet so ever By ot oh behalf of the

rampary (Uitmars Beneficianies) or prowads amy gusram=e. security or tha ilke 1o or pn pehalf of the Uinimate Bensficianes.

183 Tre Compary hasm't recedvad any fund from ary personds] or sntmy|les), inchedeng forslgn entities {(Fanding Farty) with ths
understanding |whethar recorded inowriting or otheradse) that the Company shall
Directly or indirectly lend or imeest in other persons or entitiea identified in any manner what 2o ever By ot on behall of the

Furdfing Party {Witimate Bereficiaries) o provide any guarantes, sscurity ar the ke on behall of the Ultirate Bensficiaries

Thers is no Ingication of @1y Impairment kased on edemalfinternal fectors and hengs np provision for tha Imgairmant ioss had
353 bean reccgrized in terms of Accountng Standards 1E-bmpairment of Azsets, issued by the |nstitute of Chartered Accountants of
Irdia

354 Deheer Matas
Cormesponding previous yeac figures Rave been regrouvped/recast and mechsified, wharswer necessary 0 conform o current
vaar's dlasdificariondseiasurs to make them comparahls

In terms af our report attached. Far and on behaif of the Soard of Directors
For Dalan snd Co ERD BMOTORS LTDH
Chamsred ACCoURTarTs
ICA) Firm registration numhar: D00 3405 £a- Sg/l-
. GO WilEam Varghess Siemon Chera C.
CHasrnan tanaging Dursciar
Edj- (DN DO0TAT0E) [vpi: DOOT4163]
P. Mohandas, FCA &4/ Sd/.
Partner IsEwan loy Ehap=erathan G
Membership no: $21283 Arcounis bdanager Company Secratary
Maco 1 Alava Place : Aluva
Diate ; 3008 20F5 Dste - 30,08, 2025
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